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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens$

This Annual Report includes statements of our etgiems, intentions plans and beliefs that contgtitéorwardiooking statements" within tl
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398 amended, Section 21E of the Securities Exehant of 1934, as amended and are
intended to come within the safe harbor protectimvided by those sections. These statements, vilmciive risks and uncertainties, relat
the discussion of business strategies of Globatl @airporation ("the Company" or "Global Gold") amar expectations concerning future
operations, margins, profitability, liquidity andpmital resources and to analyses and other infesm#tat are based on forecasts of future
results and estimates of amounts not yet deterf@ngfe have used words such as "may," "will," "ddgu’'expects,” "intends," "plans,"
"anticipates," "believes," "thinks," "estimatessee€ks," "expects," "predicts," "could," "projectgdtential” and other similar terms and
phrases, including references to assumptionsjsiréiport to identify forward-looking statementfieEe forward-looking statements are made
based on expectations and beliefs concerning fetveats affecting the Company and are subject tert@inties, risks and factors relating to
our operations and business environments, all aéiwére difficult to predict and many of which dreyond the Company's control, that cc
cause our actual results to differ materially frihhase matters expressed or implied by these fortemking statements. These risks and other
factors include those listed under "Risk Factors} alsewhere in this report. The following fact@song others, could cause our actual
results and performance to differ materially frdme tesults and performance projected in, or imphigthe forward-looking statements:

o the Company's history of losses and expectatidarther losses;
o the effect of poor operating results on the Camyp

o the Company's ability to expand its operationisdth new and existing locations and the Compaabyjlgy to develop and mine its
current and new sites;

o the Company's ability to raise capital;

o the Company's ability to fully utilize and retaiew executives;

o the impact of litigation, including internatidreabitrations;

o the impact of federal, state, local or foreigwernment regulations;
o the effect of competition in the mining industand

0 economic and political conditions generally.

The Company assumes no obligation to publicly updatrevise these forward-looking statements fgrraason, or to update the reasons
actual results could differ materially from thosieipated in, or implied by, these forward-lookisigjitements, even if new information
becomes available in the future.

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors

The United States Securities and Exchange Commigthie “SEC”)limits disclosure for U.S. reporting purposes toenal deposits thal
company can economically and legally extract ordpo®. We use terms such as “reserves,” “resolrtgsologic resources,” “proven,”
“probable,” “measured,” “indicated,” or “inferredyhich may not be consistent with the reserve dédimsé established by the SEC Indu
Guide 7. Laws of foreign countries including Arrmreeand Chile are not consistent with SEC Industuyd@ 7 regarding use of such ter
We are required to adhere to the mining laws a&ggiirements of the countries we operate in whictutgtes developing reserves as we
exploration and mining activities pursuant to lawshe countries where we operate and to be in tiange with license requirements.
acknowledge that due to the differences in lamthefcountries in which we operate and SEC InduStride 7, our mining activities are be
reported for informational and disclosure purpdsased on foreign country requirements but alsottt@SEC does not recognize any of
properties as having proven or probable resentebleshed under SEC Industry Guide 7. Under SEitistry Guide 7, we can only state
we are in the exploration stage and have foundis@mies in mineralization amongst our drillinguklts, even though we have fore
country approved reserves, resources, mining legrend sales of concentrate.




ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
(1) GENERAL OVERVIEW

Global Gold is currently in the exploration statiés engaged in exploration for, and developmert mining of, gold, silver, and other
minerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. The Comgamyadquarters are located in Greenwich, Connéetimlits subsidiaries maintain
offices and staff in Yerevan, Armenia, and Santjagjuile. The Company was incorporated as Triad gn€orporation in the State of
Delaware on February 21, 1980 and, as further testtbelow, conducted other business prior to JgnLial995. During 1995, the Company
changed its name from Triad Energy Corporation ltmb&l Gold Corporation to pursue certain gold aodper mining rights in the former
Soviet Republics of Armenia and Georgia. The Compgeas not established proven and probable resdrvascordance with SEC Industry
Guide 7, at any of its properties. The Compartgsksis publicly traded. The Company employs apjmately 100 people globally on a year
round basis and an additional 200 people on a sabbasis.

Although the Company competes with mui&itional mining companies which have substantigidbater resources and numbers of employ
The Company’s long term presence and the expentidéknowledge of its personnel in Armenia and ifleCallow it to compete with
companies with greater resources.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on #hloration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @n expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia, including @@mpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiéatand subsidiaries.

In Chile, the Companyg focus is primarily on the exploration, developtemd production of gold at the Pureo propertyaatk central Chile
near Valdivia. The Company is also engaged intifiémg exploration and production opportunitiesositer locations in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uraniumratiolo activities in the provinces of Newfoundlaart Labrador, but has phased out
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsiidisy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint asvolea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbial Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global Qaldenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia ams @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyelbas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquir8@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHK.,.C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whiclidhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan propeiti Armenia. On December 18,
2009, the Company entered into an agreement witthe@aoutlining the terms of a joint venture on @@mpany’s Marjan property in
Armenia (“Marjan JV"). See Subsequent Events foupdate on the Marjan JV and Marjan license.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5@#the Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldL C, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global GdMiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaagaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian compartlgelea Investments, CIJSC
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") and it's appimately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/uraniunplexation license area in the
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @iy\0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the rerimar20% interest in Getik Mining
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wf 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC.




On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Gothium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium™), as a whollyoed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium expdoraictivities in Canada. Global Gold Uranium waslified to do business in the
Canadian Provinces of Newfoundland and Labrador.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢nvéh members of the Quijano family (“Quijano”) byhich Minera Global assumed a
51% interest in the placer and hard rock gold Malir®ios and Pureo properties in south centraleChiar Valdivia. The name of the joint
venture company is Compania Minera Global Gold WéddS.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV”). OrAugust 14, 2009, the Company
amended the above agreement whereby Global Goltiwieabecame wholly owned by the Company and rethionly the Pureo Claims
Block (approximately 8,200 hectares), transfertimg Madre De Dios claims block to the sole owngrshimembers of the Quijano family.

The Company is a reporting company and is therefobect to the requirements of the Securitieskxchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and accordingly files its Annuagort on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 1@®@finitive Proxy Statements,
Current Reports on Form 8-K, and other informatiathh the Securities and Exchange Commission (tHeC'$. The public may read and

copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEHIblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NW, WasbimddC 20549. Please call the SEC
at (800) SEC-0330 for further information on théoRuReference Room. As an electronic filer, thev@any's public filings are maintained

on the SEC's Internet site that contains reportsypand information statements, and other inforamategarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of thabsite is http://www.sec.gov.

The Company'’s filings are also accessible freehafge through the Company's Internet site afteCibrmpany has electronically filed such
material with, or furnished it to, the SEC. Thealebs of that website is http:// www.globalgoldcogm. However, such reports may not be
accessible through the Company's website as prgragtihey are accessible on the SEC's website.

(2) INITIAL ARMENIAN MINING PROJECT

In 1996, the Company acquired rights under a Jéamture Agreement with the Ministry of Industry Afmenia and Armgold, S.E., the
Armenian state enterprise, formed to provide capitd multistage financing of the Armenian goldustty, which rights were finalized under
the Second Armenian Gold Recovery Company JointiferAgreement, dated as of September 30, 1997.

As of January 31, 1997, the Company and Global @otdenia Limited, the Company's then wholly-ownealy@an Islands subsidiary
("GGA Cayman"), reached an initial agreement wittsttDynasty Mines, Ltd., whose name changed tdif&tésold Ltd. On July 5, 2002
("Sterlite"), a Canadian public company and whdsas were traded on the Toronto Stock Exchanderesipect to the initial Armenian
project. The Company, GGA Cayman and Sterlite edtarto a definitive agreement, dated May 13, 128Wer such agreement, Sterlite
acquired all of the stock of GGA Cayman, subjeatddain conditions, by advancing funds in stagesessary for the implementation of the
tailings reprocessing project and the preparatfa@ngineering and business plan materials for ttraghian Joint Venture and

delivering 4,000,000 shares of First Dynasty (I&terlite) Common Stock to the Company (the "FDigrdement”). The parties thereafter
amended the FDM Agreement on July 24, 1998. Putdodhe FDM Agreement, the Company retains thitrigtil December 31, 2009 to
elect to participate at a level of up to 20% witkriite, or any of its affiliates or successorsnterest, in any exploration project undertakel
them in Armenia. As of December 31, 2004, the Camgpiid not own any shares of Sterlite common sttt2006, Vedanta Resources plc
("Vedanta") acquired control of Sterlite throughimétar International Limited ("TSI"), an indirestholly-owned subsidiary of Vedanta. In
September 2007, Vedanta (and Sterlite) announ@dty had closed a stock sale transaction withP@EMining Ltd., which made
GeoProMining Ltd. and its affiliates the succesgorthe 20% obligation.




(3) ARMENIA PROPERTIES

The Company operates an office in Yerevan, Armaitiare it manages its exploration and mining adéigias well as reviews potential
acquisitions. A map showing the location of thepenmdies in Armenia (below) and other informationtba properties are located on the
Company's website.
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Hankavan
Hankavan is located in central Armenia in the K&tpyovince between Vanadzor and Meghradzor north@Marmarik River.

GGH acquired Hankavan licenses in December of 20@&igh the acquisition of the Armenian companyASHLC (since renamed Global
Gold Hankavan, LLC ("GGH")), and has been conduggrtrdrilling program along with other exploratiottigities to confirm the historical
feasibility work done on the copper, molybdenum golti mineralization in the Soviet era. GGH alspanded its exploration activities to !
other, smaller license areas in and around Hankakaaddition, GGH is conducting exploration adrming to determine the feasibility of a
quick start mining operation for copper oxide irstarea. These activities have not been activetgyed pending performance of a
conditional, confidential settlement agreement whitn Armenian Government entered as of Februarg@33.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiegs”, below.
Marjan

The Marjan mining property is located in Southwest&rmenia, along the Nakichevan border in the Sypnovince. The property is
accessible by car or truck through existing pavedidirt roads. The property comprises two partarjish Central, where early drilling and
underground exploration has been carried out aratjavi North (Mazmazak), which is situated somekingnorth of Marjan Central. The
whole property is roughly rectangular in shape,l8wide by 6.1 km long. The approximate geogragiaordinates of the property are, 39°
24’ 00" Latitude and 45° 51’ 00" Longitude. Eldctpower is proximate to the property. There soal river which passes in the immediate
proximity to the property. The Company does natehany facilities or material equipment at the grdyp. The Company has only done
exploration work at the property and has not dgwedoany significant surface or underground worlan@nfrastructure with the exception of
approximately 60 kilometers of roads built. Alluggment needed is brought to the site on an asedkleasis from the Company’s other
properties or from contractors.

The area of the Marjan Property is underlain byti@igr volcanic rocks, which have been intruded bytim-northwest trending dioritic



dykes. The bulk of the gold mineralization is @néd within polymetallic sulphide veins, which associated with northerthwest trendin
hydrothermal alteration zones. These alteratioreg@re readily observed on the surface as rugfsetozones on outcrops. Two types of
gold mineralization have been observed. Thesga@remineralization associated with sulphide véimgolcanic rocks, and gold
mineralization adjacent to dioritic dykes, whiclrirde the volcanic rocks.




The Company does not currently have establishextves at the Marjan Property except as reportetidyrepublic of Armenia State
Committee on Reserves (“GKZ") and is focusing oplesation work based on Armenian historical GKZaets (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 af tlieport). The Company has done geological mapground geophysical surveys,
trenching and diamond drill testing at Marjan andtmues its exploration work there based on thme\ian historical GKZ records in
conjunction with the exploration work and resultsd so far. Additional exploration work will nealbe funded with additional funds raised
through joint ventures, debt, equity or a comborathereof.

The Marjan property is a lode deposit which willrh@ed using underground adits. The Company has\ational special mining license
#HA-L-14/526 which covers surface rights for minjmgploration and related purposes for gold andfeommus metals (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 af tlieport). The license area is defined by thiv¥ahg coordinates:

1. X =4365000 3. X =4363770 5. X =4360000
Y =857000C Y = 8574530 Y =857270C

2. X = 4366800 4., X =4360400
Y =857200C Y =857525C

In 2009, GGH engaged in mapping, sampling, drifllgsis and other exploration work at Marjan aneégpanded Marjan North area. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company has not generajecee@nue from sales of any concentrate or otheeralized material at the

property. As of December 31, 2009, the Companyspast approximately $3,515,000 on mining and e®pilon activities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

This property was previously explored during thei€pera. SHA, LLC applied for an original licenfsem the Armenian

Government. Global Gold Mining acquired 100% off/SHLC, the Armenian company which held the licets¢he property in December
2003. On April 28, 2008, the Company was issutdeaty-five year “special mining licenséjr the Marjan property effective April 22, 2C
and expiring April 22, 2033 which expands the pticense term and substantially increases thedieemea from approximately 1,400 acre
approximately 4,800 acres. The Company is requogrhy annual governmental fees of approximatbh,@0. The Company is also
required to perform work at the property as suteditind approved in its mining plan which includesing of 150,000 tonnes of mineralized
rock between April 22, 2008 and April 21, 2008, amdhave additional reserves approved under Arnmelrdav in order to maintain the
licenses in good standing (please refer to the tiGaary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 of thepart).

On December 18, 2009, the Company entered intgeeement with Caldera outlining the terms of atj@ienture on the Comparg/Marjar
property in Armenia (“Marjan JV").

Key terms include that Caldera shall, subject tmgeand conditions, earn a 55% interest in the &faGold-SilverPolymetallic Project aft
completing a bankable feasibility study on the pcojpr spending US$3.0M on the property.

As additional consideration, Caldera will be makagonrefundable US$50,000 deposit by December 30, 20@9ssue 500,000 shares
the company on a postnsolidated basis. Caldera will also make a paymet/S$100,000 no later than March 30, 2010, slbascribe
below in Exhibit 10.22. A definitive agreement wilé signed as soon as possible, upon completicinefdiligence review, respective bc
approvals and any regulatory approval that mayeumpiired. The Company received the US$50,000 depasDecember 29, 2009. ¢
Subsequent Events for an update on the Marjan JV.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.




Tukhmanuk

The Tukhmanuk property is adjacent to the Hankaraperty in central Armenia, between the Aragatsotd Kotayk provinces. The
property includes seven surrounding exploratiogsséis well as other assets.. The property isddagtproximately 60 km (72 km by road)
north of Yerevan, close to the Town of Aparan amohe 75 km (by road) from the Alaverdi copper smétienorthern Armenia. Access to
the Tukhmanuk Property is by paved road (aboutrB#rkm Yerevan to the turn-off of the road northAgfaran and about 15 km by dirt road
from Aparan to Melikkyugh, the nearby village t@thite). Local infrastructure is available at $ite and at nearby towns. Infrastructure at
the site includes electrical power, cell phone eknand road building equipment. Logistical suppiorterms of power, is available at the
Tukhmanuk site, and at Melikkyugh, which is linkega 10 Kv line to the Armenian Power grid. Wageavailable from natural sources
within the property, independent of community sestcIn addition to the central property, the asijon included a 200,000 tonne per year
capacity plant. The Company has maintained thet'glarushers, mills, and gravitation circuits imogl condition while also adding a hydro
cyclone and flotation cells, as well as buildingeav tailings dam. Other major assets at the ptpjieclude several bulldozers, excavators
and a track trencher which are all in good conditi@he property also includes some temporary Imgushits, and hangers which are used to
store core samples, a gold room, and a new IS@iedraboratory.

The area of the Tukhmanuk Property is underlain@manantly by Jurassic volcanic rocks and Cretaseotuusive rocks. The volcanic roc
comprise andesites and dacites, and the intrustkesrare dominantly granitic with minor graniticeggs and amphibolites. Parts of the area
are also covered by Tertiary volcanic rocks inahgdbbsidian and perlites. Gold mineralizationiia Tukhmanuk area is hosted by both
volcanic and intrusive rocks.

On October 27, 2009, the Company issued a presaselannouncing the first stage of approval ofvesdor its Toukhmanuk expansion.
The Republic of Armenia’s State Natural Resourcgemty (the "Agency") issued its certificate basedh® proposal of the Agency’s State
Geological Expert Commission made during its Ocat@3 2009 session. The total ore reserve appravas roughly 21,900,000 tonnes with
an average gold grade of 1.62 grams per tonneuwatt @f grade of 0.80 grams per tonne and an aeesdger grade of 4.88 grams per tonne.
Total approved reserves in the C1 and C2 categareesoughly 35.614 tonnes (or 1,145,000 ouncegplaf and 107 tonnes (or 3,440,000
ounces) of silver. In its approval, the Agency atitteat the “approved reserves entirely corresporttié requirements for Measured and
Indicated reserves under International Standards."

On November 18, 2009, the Company issued a presssseeannouncing that following up on the issuari¢be approving a first stage gold
reserve, the Republic of Armenia’s State Naturadreces Agency (the “Agency”) has delivered it$ dglcision with backup calculations on
November 13, 2009 confirming an additional goldbese in the inferred category. The Agency isstedécision based on the proposa
the Agency'’s State Geological Expert Commission enduting its October 23, 2009 session. A copy efdfficial approval and a partial
unofficial translation are available on the companyebsite www.globalgoldcorp.com

The approved gold resource in the Inferred categop tonnes (or 1,225,276 ounces), which togetlithrthe approved 1.145 million ounc
of reserves marks a sharp increase from the 8réeapproved under GKZ decision N28 of January2@64. The reserve and resource
estimates were concluded at a cutoff grade of taghg per tonne, all as described in Exhibit 10 &b\.

The Company has done geological mapping, groungigesical surveys, trenching and diamond drill tegtt Tukhmanuk and continues its
exploration work there based on the Armenian hisabiGKZ records in conjunction with the exploratiowork and results done so far (please
refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors”mage 3 of this report). Additional explorationnwavill need to be funded with additional
funds raised through joint ventures, debt, equitgs oombination thereof. See “Subsequent Eventstipdate on funding.

The Tukhmanuk property is a lode deposit whicheisip mined using an open pit method. The Compasydme National exploration licer
#15, as extended, covering approximately 10,91&safor sub-surface exploitation of gold. The Compalso has one National mining
license #HA-L-14/356 which covers the central sactf the property and is approximately 446 acoesrfining gold and silver. The
Company is required to pay annual governmental déapproximately $32,000. The Company is alsaireg to spend annually
approximately $1,200,000 on exploration work andimg annually 80,000 tonnes of mineralized rocthatproperty as submitted and
approved in its mining plan in order to maintaie titenses in good standing (please refer to treutiGnary Note to U.S. Investoreh page
of this report). The exploration license areadfred by the following coordinates:




Global Gold Corporation — Tukhmanuk Property, Armenia

Corner Easting (X) Northing (Y)
1 4501580 8444500
2 4504350 8447800
3 4502700 8450000
4 4504050 8451850
5 4503250 8452250
6 4503300 8453950
7 4502500 8453900
8 4502400 8450850
9 4501950 8451350
10 4501680 8452550
11 4500525 8453380
12 4499730 8453950
13 4499800 8451600
14 4500650 8451550
15 4500700 8450600
16 4500000 8449870
17 4498550 8450700
18 4497000 8450650
19 4497000 8448370
20 4497900 8448700
21 4498200 8447550
22 4497000 8446100
23 4497000 8444400
24 4499000 8444400
25 4491750 8445650

In 2008, Global Gold Mining upgraded the plant &atul installed a new gold room, recommenced miring production of concentrate, and
continued its analysis of the prior years drillués.  Also, the Company compiled its reserve repod submitted it to the state committee on
reserves of Armenia in March 2009 (please refénhéd‘Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on pagd s report). The Company has
generated minimal sales from gold and silver cotraéafrom the property as of December 31, 2008lesSwere approximately $6,000 in
2006, $10,400 in 2007, nothing in 2008, and $13Bj6R009. The sales in 2006 were for 41.11 torofig®ld and silver concentrate with
content of approximately 33 g/t gold and 290 ditesi The sales in 2007 were for 47.23 tones ¢d god silver concentrate with content of
approximately 21 g/t gold and 117 g/t silver. Hades in 2009 were for 109.98 tonnes of gold alwérstoncentrate with content of
approximately 54 g/t gold and 216 g/t silver. Tmmpany has mined mineralized rock of approximad@00 tonnes in 2006 with content
of approximately 1.27 g/t gold and 6.37 g/t silvews,mining in 2007, approximately 82,000 tonne2008 with content of approximately 1.85
g/t gold and 5.21 g/t silver, and no mining in 200% of December 31, 2009, the Company has sggmbaimately $7,660,000 on mining
and exploration activities at this property, exahgdacquisition and capital costs.

On May 22, 2008, the government of Armenia issuéspacial exploration licensdb the Company for the Tukhmanuk mining propeftie
license is effective May 13, 2008 and expires ory M@, 2010 with the option of being extended foraaditional two years. The spet
exploration license does not affect the Companyanty-five year license over the smaller “Centract®n” of the property. The spec
exploration license expands the prior license tanah increases the license area by approximatelyabtess, from approximately 10,297 a
to approximately 10,915 acres.




On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armkmiged liability company Mego-

Gold, LLC which acquired the license from the goweent for the Tukhmanuk mining property and surtbog exploration sites as well as
the owner of the related processing plant andradlsets. On August 2, 2006, Global Gold Minixereised its option to acquire the
remaining forty-nine percent (49%) of Mego-Gold,ZLin exchange for one million dollars ($1,000,080) five hundred thousand

(500,000) restricted shares of the Company's constamk with a contingency allowing the sellerseétl back the 500,000 shares on or be
September 15, 2007 for a payment of $1 milliol& Company's stock is not traded at or above tvlardaand fifty cents ($2.50) at any time
between July 1, 2007 and August 31, 2007. On &dme 12, 2006, Global Gold Mining loaned two huntteousand dollars ($200,000) to
Karapet Khachatryan ("Maker"), one of the selldrtego-Gold LLC, a citizen of the Republic of Armianas evidenced by a convertible
promissory note payable (“Note”) to Global Gold g, with interest in arrears on the unpaid priatipalance at an annual rate equal to ten
percent (10%). At any time following September 2806, the Company, at its sole option, had the tiglsonvert all of Maker's debt from t
date of the Note to the date of conversion intaeshaf common stock of the Company at the convengiice of $1.50 per share with all of
such shares as security for all obligations. Madtedged two hundred fifty five thousand (255,0004res of the Company's common stock as
security for his obligations thereunder. On Septenils, 2007, the contingency period expired withexdrcise, extension or amendment. The
Company has accounted for this by booking the 3ghares, at the fair market value of $1,000,0@6,Additional Paid-In Capital. The
Company also booked the $200,000 secured loarNiote Receivable and accrued interest, from incapifoNote as per the terms of the

Note above, into Additional PeIn Capital. On February 12, 2008 the Company @sed its option and converted the Note and accrued
interest into one hundred fifty two thousand selendred seventy-eight (152,778) shares, which weme cancelled.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.

Getik

The Getik property is located in the northeast Geghinik province of Armenia north-east of Lake Sesad approximately 110 km north-
east of Yerevan. The property is accessible byrcaucks through existing paved and dirt roa@ss and electric power are available at the
property. The property is located in the Alavef@ipan metallogenic zone on the edge of the Seviamesmone in an area characterized by
volcanogenic sedimentary rocks of Jurassic andiiage. A series of granitoid intrusives varyiranf ganodiorite to rhyolite composition
have been identified in the area associated widgenal scale east-west trending fault and losedde north-south trending faults. The
Company does not have any facilities or materiai@gent at the property. The Company has only eoqpdoration work at the property and
has not developed any significant surface or urrdergl working or infrastructure with the exceptmimpproximately 60 kilometers of roads
built. All equipment needed is brought to the sitean as needed basis from the Company’s othpepies or from contractors.

The Company does not currently have establishedves at the Getik Property and is focusing onagpilon work based on Armenian
historical GKZ records. The Company has done ggcdéd mapping, ground geophysical surveys, trerghind diamond drill testing at Getik
and continues its exploration work there basechenArmenian historical GKZ records in conjunctioithithe exploration work and results
done so far (please refer to the “Cautionary Notd.S. Investors” on page 3 of this report). Abbditl exploration work will need to be

funded with additional funds raised through joiehtures, debt, equity or a combination thereof.

The Getik property is a lode deposit which willténed using an open pit. The Company has two Natiexploration licenses #85 which
covers sub-surface exploitation of precious metatke Amrots manifestation and #86 which covetssurface exploitation of non-ferrous
metals in the Aygut manifestation, as further diésct below. The Company is required to pay angoakrnmental fees of $1,000. The
Company is also required to spend annually appratéiy $1,000,000 on exploration work in order tamtein the licenses in good
standing. The exploration license area is deflmethe following coordinates for the Amrots goldmifastation and Aygut copper

manifestation:

Amrots manifestation:

Aygut manifestation:

1. X =4507000
Y = 8517000

. X =4507000
Y = 8525000

. X =4503000
Y = 8525000

. X =4503000
Y = 8522000

. X =4507000
Y = 8516000

. X =4507000

Y = 8517000

5. X = 4504350
Y = 8521350

. X =4504450
Y = 8520850

. X =4504350
Y = 8520350

. X =4504125
Y = 8520250

. X =4504750
Y = 8517000

. X =4504950
Y = 8516000

9. X =4504000

Y = 8519650
10. X = 4504350
Y = 8519000
11. X = 4504750
Y = 8517000
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In 2009, Getik Mining Company, LLC engaged in maygpisampling, drill analysis and other exploraticork at the Getik property. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company has not generajecee@nue from sales of any concentrate or othaeralized material at the
property. As of December 31, 2009, the Companyshast approximately $649,000 on mining and exfilameactivities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

On December 10, 2008, the government of Armenigeids new special exploration license expiring Dewer 10, 2013. The Company will
conduct further exploration activities during tpisriod.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaslpurchase agreement, dated as of January 28, R0 Athelea Investments, CIJSC
("Al") and Messrs. Simon Cleghorn, Sergio DiGiovahimen Ghazarian, and Frank Pastorino (the "Sg)do transfer 80% of the shares of
Al to Global Gold Mining in exchange for 100,00Gsks of the Company's common stock. All assetdu(ireg the "Athelea” name) not
related to the approximately 27 square kilometeaik3mld/uranium exploration license area were $farred back to the Sellers. Al was
renamed the "Getik Mining Company, LLC." As of M3, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the remainiwenty percent interest in
Getik Mining Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mg as the owner of one hundred percent of GetikiidiCompany, LLC.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.
Lichkvadz-Tei and Terterasar
Lichtvadz-Tei and Terterasar are located in thelsa Armenia province of Syunik.

On August 15, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatint venture agreement with Iberian Resourdested’s subsidiary, Caucusus
Resources Ltd. (“CR”) to form the Aigedzor Mining@pany, LLC ("AMC") on an 80% CR, 20% Global Goldriihg basis in anticipation
of jointly acquiring and developing (a) for the hlovadz-Tei and Terterasar mining properties as agthe associated plant and assets in
southern Armenia through the Armenian limited lidgpicompany Sipan 1, LLC ("Sipan 1") which is tleensee; and (b) mineral exploration
and related properties within a 20 kilometer radifithe southern Armenian town of Aigedzor.

On December 19, 2006, Global Gold Mining enteréRestructuring, Royalty, and Joint Venture TermioatAgreement” with CR. The
agreement restructures the parties' Aigedzor Midloghpany Joint Venture to transfer Global Gold Minis 20% interest to CR in exchange
for: one million dollars; a 2.5% Net Smelter Ret(tNSR”") royalty payable on all products produceonh the Lichkvaz and Terterasar mines
as well as from any mining properties acquired 20&ilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in #wrn Armenia; the right to participate

to 20% in any new projects undertaken by Iberiaitsoaffiliates in Armenia until August 15, 2015)cafive million shares of Iberian's
common stock, which are restricted for one yearF@oruary 28, 2007, Iberian Resources Limited anoed its merger with Tamaya
Resources Limited (“Tamaya”), and Tamaya is nowetlgping those properties. As part of the merder five million shares of Iberian’s
common stock were exchanged for twenty million ekaf Tamaya's common stock without any restrictio@lobal Gold Mining retains the
right to participate up to 20% in any new projaatslertaken by Tamaya or its affiliates in ArmenmillAugust 15, 2015 and the 2.5% Net
Smelter Return royalty as described above. Dutiegyear ended December 31, 2007, the Companyad8,000,000 shares of the Tamaya
Resources Limited Stock that it owned. In 2008n&ga and Iberian Resources filed for bankruptciustralia. In 2009, the bankruptcy
administrators sold the shares of Sipan 1, LLCaodnova Overseas company organized in the Unitad Emirates which, on information
and belief, includes local and foreign investord amhich also assumes the continuing obligationSip&n 1, LLC to Global Gold. . The
Company has taken action to protect its rights.infarmation and belief, the license for Lichkva@lei was terminated by Armenian
authorities in March 2009 and is now in litigation.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.
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(4) CHILE PROPERTIES

The Company operates an office in Santiago, Chilielwis engaged in exploration activities, develepirof mining projects, and acquisition
review. A map showing the location of the propentfhile (below) and other information about thegerties are located on the Company's
website.

Pureo

The Pureo property is located in south central&;mear Valdivia, and approximately 700 km soutBantiago. The property consists of
approximately 8,200 hectares. The geographic @oates of the central part of the property are axipnately 39°00'S and 72°0@/. Acces:
to the property is by paved roads and gravel ro&afsastructure at the site includes electricaivpg cell phone network and road building
equipment. Water, both industrial and potablelréavn from wells. The Company has a hanger anddmér at the property.

The property is underlain by metamorphic and ctistarocks of Paleozoic age, including sericitbist; black to blue shale, altered
sandstone and andesite. These rocks comprisesieenznt rock assemblage in the area. In geneeak tocks are foliated and, in places,
intruded by granite, granodiorite and dioritic dike

The Pureo property is mainly a placer deposit wiidhbe mined using an open pit. The Compangfaims are National exploitation licen:
which carry definitive rights as long as the feesaid. The Company is required to pay governaidaes are approximately $30,000 per
year. If gold production is more than the $30,000alue, then this amount is refunded. The priypisrsubject to a 17% Net Profits tax
production. As of December 31, 2009, the Compars/riot generated any revenue from sales of anyeotniate or other mineralized mate
at the property. As of December 31, 2009, the Gomghas spent approximately $495,000 on miningexypdbration activities at this
property, excluding acquisition and capital costs.
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On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreémvégh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios an@dproperties. The name of the joint venture camppg Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV").

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointtuemnagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termguity interests set at 51%-49% in favor of Globald of the 3 directors, two (Mr.

Krikorian and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice Pd&sit in Santiago) are appointed by Global Gold;p@lgsold commits to finance at least
one plant and mining operation within 3 years al asa mutually agreed exploration program totdith proven reserves, and if that is
successful, two additional plants/operations wélifimanced; and from the profits of the joint vartuGlobal Gold will pay its partner an extra
share based on the following scale of 28 milliorosifor (a) 5 million ounces of gold produced igears or (b) 5 million ounces of gold
proven as reserves according to Canadian 43-1@dlatds in 5 years. The definitions of proven arabpble reserves in NI 43-101 reports
differ from the definitions in SEC Industry Guide Also, the SEC does not recognize the terms “oreasresources and indicated resources”
or “inferred resources” which are used in NI 43-16fiorts. The Company has completed a geologipalrt on the property.

On July 24, 2009, Global Gold entered into an ameard with members of the Quijano family (“Quijanad)the October 29, 2007 Global
Gold Valdivia joint venture subject to final boaagdproval on or before July 31, 2009 whereby GGV békcome wholly owned by Global
Gold and retain only the Pureo Claims Block (apprmtely 8,200 hectares), transferring the MadreDixes claims block to the sole
ownership to members of the Quijano family. Ory 28, 2009, the amendment was approved by the Coyrgpboard of directors.

Key terms of the amendment included that on orreefaigust 15, 2009, GGV transfer to Quijano ordesignee one hundred percent (10
interest in the current GGV claims identified as tladre De Dios Claims Block and Quijano transteGlobal Gold one hundred perc
(100%) interest in the GGV, or its designee, arel itmaining claims identified as the Pureo ClainiacB All transfers were closed
Santiago, Chile on August 14, 2009 which termindtedjoint venture. If GGV does not commence pmidin on a commercial basis on
property being transferred to its sole control parg to this agreement within two years (subjecirg time taken for permitting purpost
the property shall revert to Quijano.

Quijano shall be entitled a 3% NSR royalty inteiastll metals produced from the properties retaimeGGV up to a maximum of 27 milli
Euros, subject to Quijan®’initial repayment of $200,000 to Global Gold. Foree years, GGV or its designee shall have fat g first
refusal on any bona fide offers for all or any pErthe properties transferred to Quijano (to bereised within five (5) days). For three ye
Quijano shall also have a right of first refusalamy bona fide offers for all or any part of themerties retained by GGV or its designee (t
exercised within twenty (20) days).

In 2009, the Company continued to plan its minipgans, including plant systems for the Guadalosipeidentified to begin.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.

Ipun Island and Chiloe Island Properties

Ipun Island and Chiloe Island are located in Sautl@hile.

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidenmtial agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the
Quijano family by which the Company has the optomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &d&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another gold-platinum property on Chiloe Islanda @arch 31, 2008, this agreement was amended &aimgf the licenses for the Ipun and
Chiloe islands to Global Gold Valdivia in excharfge250,000 restricted shares of common stock ob@l Gold Corporation at a fair market
value of $0.23 per share, all as further describdgkhibit 10.5 of Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2008.

On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into arskd an agreement to sell all of the Company’sésten its Chiloe and Ipun island
properties in Chile back to the Quijano family $#00,000 and certain mining equipment, and othesideration, all as further described in

Exhibit 10.3 of Form 8-K filed on October 8, 2008he Company has no further interest or activitthwespect to these properties.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
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Santa Candelaria
Santa Candelaria is located in Comuna de Diegolamgro, Region Il of Chile.

The Company, on January 15, 2003, entered intgpaordpurchase/lease agreement with Alfredo Sotendaand Adrian Soto Torino for the
purchase of copper gold properties in Chanarakididtl Chile (the Candelaria 1 to 3, the Santan@elaria 1 to 8 and the Torino | mining
claims 1 through 7 and Torino Il mining claims tahgh 11) (the "Chilean Agreement"). The Companyently refers to all of the properti
acquired by the Chilean Agreement as "Santa Candélahe Agreement was converted into a purchgseesnent on February 4, 2004.

After certain exploration activities, including litad drilling in 2005, the Company determined tih@hould discontinue its exploration
operations at Santa Candelaria, and wrote downviestment. Further, on January 13, 2006, Mineb@llentered into a purchase, option,
and royalty agreement with Mr. Adrian Soto Toriaa;itizen of Chile ("AST") to transfer the miningrecessions Candelaria 1, 2, and 3 to
AST to mine the gold property and pay Minera Gladbaket smelter royalty of 10% until such time andfa Global has been paid $75,000
and thereafter a net smelter royalty of 2% forlifeeof the mine. All liabilities and fees asso@dtwith the property are the responsibility of
AST, and Minera Global retains the option to reaegthe mining concession upon 60 days notice aydngnt of 1,000,000 Chilean pesos
(approximately $2,000 USD using exchange ratessaeber 31, 2009).

See ltem 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
(5) CANADA PROPERTIES

A map showing the location of the properties in &bmand other information about the propertiedamated on the Company's website. The
Company has phased out its Canadian propertiesnirgg a royalty interest in the Cochrane Pond erggpin Newfoundland.

Grand Lake and Shallow Lake
The Grand Lake and Shallow Lake properties aretiéacim the Canadian province of Newfoundland anirador.

In 2007, the Company, through Global Gold Uranigarried out a ground prospecting survey investiggdirborne radiometric anomalies
and lake sediment geochemical anomalies which ked Hetected by earlier surveys carried out byrmginompanies in the 1960s and
1970s. This work was carried out over the six seaclaim blocks situated north and northwest api Valley-Goose Bay, Labrador.

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enteréalar'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Masglexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungerdent interest ownership of mineral licensetsgtt or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5@&@s). According to the Labrador Uranium Claimse®ggnent, Global Gold Uranium
would be solely responsible for exploration and agement during the option periods and can exetiseseption to acquire one hundred
percent of the license rights at either propertgianting the sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which lsarbought out for $2,000,000 cash or at
seller's option in common stock of the Company edlat the six month weighted average of the stdble &ime of exercise. All dollar
references are to Canadian dollars. Global Golahiura would earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) optiche Licenses by paying cash i
common stock (20,000 shares initial deposit). lditah, Global Gold Uranium completed staking 30diras (approximately 18,531 acres) in
the immediate vicinity of the Grand Lake and Shallcake properties. With respect to the Shallowd #lansaction, the sellers breached a
representation and warranty to keep the licendgsig force for a period after acquisition, seVvefahe licenses lapsed, and Global Gold
Uranium, in its own name, successfully staked #raeslicenses in June 2007. In 2007, the Compangumied sampling and other
exploration activities on these properties, buhaitt conclusive results as to their prospectivithe Company has not issued the initial
20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company, asgphased out of these properties. The licenseséxpired as of September 30, 2009.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
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Cochrane Pond
The Cochrane Pond property is located in southeabstewfoundland, Canada.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium entered gne@ment to acquire an option for the Cochrane Hoedse area (the "Option
Agreement") with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Commédhdnd Bayswater Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). Taehrane Pond property
consists of 2,600 claims within 61,000 hectarept@amately 150,708 acres). The Agreement is sultgethe conclusion of an option
agreement. Major terms include the following: Glb&old Uranium may earn a 51% equity interest @vperiod of four years in Cochrane
Pond Property by completing; Cash payments of UBE00 over four year period; Share issuance of@&0shares of Global Gold
Corporation (50 % each to Commander and Bayswtter‘CPJV”")) over a four year period; and Propertpenditures over four year period
of C$3.5 million as further described in exhibita@n Form 8-K filed on April 16, 2007. As of Jug@, 2007, the Company has paid
$200,000 and issued 150,000 shares of the Compammyson stock, 75,000 shares each to CommandeBaysivater.

On October 17, 2008, the parties terminated théo®gtgreement, and Global Gold Uranium entered artagreement (the “Royalty
Agreement”) with Commander and Bayswater pertaininthe Cochrane Pond property. The Royalty Agesgrgrants the Company a
royalty in the Cochrane Pond property and termm#tie Company’s existing rights and obligation®eisded with the Cochrane Pond
property. The key terms of the Royalty Agreemeatthat the CPJV shall provide a royalty to the @any for uranium produced from the
Cochrane Pond property in the form of a 1% grossletion royalty from the sale of uranium concetaisgyellowcake) capped at CDN
$1million after which the royalty shall be redudech 0.5% royalty. In consideration for the royathe Company shall pay $50,000 cash,
$25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander withina38,dall as further described in exhibit 10.3 offf@-K filed on October 22,

2008. As of November 13, 2008, the Company laés $25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
(6) ENVIRONMENT AND ETHICAL MATTERS

The Company's policy on environmental mattersatestin its Code of Business Conduct and Ethicsofwis posted on the Company’s
website), and requires compliance with all relevanis and regulations. The Company’s Insider Tr@@ind Public Information Policy,
Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Bi@s, Charter of the Compensation Committee oBtb&rd of Directors, and its
Nominating and Governance Charter are also postets avebsite and require compliance with all raleaws and regulations. Specifica
the Company intends to conduct its business inrmnerathat is compatible with the balanced enviromi@eand economic needs of the
communities in which it operates. In 2007, the @any instituted a whistleblower program to encoaregporting of any non compliance
with such policies and procedures.

The Company is committed to continuous effortaripriove environmental performance throughout itgagiens. Accordingly, the
Company's policy is to: comply with internationtdrsdards as developed by the World Bank; compliz it applicable environmental laws
and regulations and apply responsible standardsenées and regulations do not exist; assess @jpis which will include a review of the
environmental issues associated with project deveémt; make available these assessments to thepajepe government agencies for rev
and approval; encourage concern and respect fambieonment; emphasize every employee's respdibsibi environmental and safety
performance; foster appropriate operating practcebtraining; manage its business with the gdasaventing incidents and controlling
emissions and wastes to below harmful levels; desigerate, and maintain facilities to this endpnd quickly and effectively to incidents
resulting from its operations, in cooperation witdustry organizations and authorized governmeaheigs; and undertake appropriate
reviews and evaluations of its operations to meaptwgress and to foster compliance with theseigsli The Company has budgeted
approximately $102,000 for environmental compliamc2008 of which it has made payments of approsatyeb42,000 to Armenian
governmental agencies for environmental compliamakhave accrued approximately $60,000 which rennairaid as of the date of this
filing. The Company did not mine ore in 2009 sdid not have any additional environmental duefa®9. The cost for the Company to
maintain environmental compliance has had no sohiatdimitation or restriction upon our ability tarry out our mining operations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
You should carefully consider the following riskctars together with all of the other informatiomtained in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K before making an investment decision with respectur common stock. Any of the following risles well as other risks and uncertainties

described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, cduddm our business, financial condition and rexfltgperations and could adversely
affect the value of our Common Stock.
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EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY

The Company did not engage in the active conduattcdide or business aside from development andm@tipn activities, it has not
generated any revenues to date, with the excepfioevenue from the transaction with Iberian Resesiat the end of 2006 and minimal s
of concentrate from Tukhmanuk. Although the Comyparaintains mining licenses in Armenia and hasrkeseaccording to the laws of
Armenia, the Company has not established proverpestthble reserves, in accordance per SEC IndGatige 7, at any of it's properties
(please refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Inees on page 3 of this report). The Company may enasprbblems, delays, expenses
difficulties typically encountered in the developmhetage, many of which may be outside of the Campsacontrol. These problems include
but are not limited to issues interpreting and prg\historical mining data, obtaining and maintagguality equipment, licensing difficultie
and financing problems.

LIQUIDITY RISK — GOING CONCERN

The Company needs additional funds in order to aohdny active mining development and productioarafions in the foreseeable future.
Especially in light of the international financi&isis starting in 2008, there can be no assurtrateany financing for acquisitions or future
projects will be available for such purposes ot suech financing, if available, would be on terragdrable or acceptable to the Company.
such, our independent registered public accouritinghas concluded that additional revenue arrareggmor financing is needed to enabl
to fund our future operations, which raises suliithabout our ability to operate as a going concand accordingly has included this
uncertainty in their report on our December 31,260nsolidated financial statements.

COMPETITION

There is intense competition in the mining indusiitge Company is competing with larger mining comips, many of which have
substantially greater financial strengths, andtehpinarketing and personnel resources than thossegsed by the Company. Although the
Company competes with multi-national mining compeanivhich have substantially greater resources antbars of employees. The
Company’s long term presence and the expertis&kiaoledge of its personnel in Armenia and in Chilew it to compete with companies
with greater resources.

NEED FOR KEY PERSONNEL

The Company presently has officers and operatiomagers intimately familiar with the operation ofnimig projects or the development of
such projects and with experience in former Sosgeintries and South America. While the Company ada¢dbelieve the loss of any director
or officer of the Company will materially and adsely affect its long-term business prospects, dbe bf any of the Company's senior
personnel might potentially adversely affect thenpany until a suitable replacement could be fodma: Company continues to employ
independent consultants and engineers, and emibloysgh subsidiaries personnel with mining, geolaqd related backgrounds in
Armenia, and in Chile.

TRADING MARKET

The Company's Common Stock is currently tradecherGTC Bulletin Board. As a result, our stockhosderay find it more difficult to buy
or sell shares of our common stock than it wouldf loéir stock were listed on a national securiggshange.

LACK OF INSURANCE PROTECTION
The Company may not be able to obtain adequateanse protection for its foreign investments.
FLUCTUATION IN MINERAL PRICES

The prices of gold and other minerals historicélllgtuate and are affected by numerous factors heylee Company's control and no
assurance can be given that any reserves provestiorated will actually be produced.
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MINING RISKS

The Company's proposed mining operations will bgesit to a variety of potential engineering, setsamd other risks, some of which cannot
be predicted and which may not be covered by imaga

There are risks inherent in the exploration fog development of, mineral deposits. The businéssiming by its nature involves significant
risks and hazards, including environmental hazandisistrial incidents, labor disputes, dischargéogfc chemicals, fire, cave ins, drought,
flooding and other acts of God.

The occurrence of any of these can delay or inp¢eMploration and production, increase exploratind production costs and result in
liability to the owner or operator of the mine. TBempany may become subject to liability for pabator other hazards against which it has
not insured or cannot insure, including those gpeet of past mining activities for which it wag nesponsible.

MINING CONCESSIONS, PERMITS AND LICENSES

The Company's mining and processing activitiesdagendant upon the grant of appropriate licensegassions, leases, permits and
regulatory consents which may be withdrawn or nmdsgect to limitations. Although the Company bedisthat the licenses, concessions,
leases, permits and consents it holds will be rexkevw required, when they expire, according to¢heent laws applicable in the respective
countries, subject to the licensing issues disddmdow in "Foreign Risks," there can be no asutedhat they will be renewed or as to the
terms of any such renewal. Mineral rights withie ttountries in which the Company is currently opiegaare state-owned. Also see
discussion under Foreign Risks and Item 3. “Legat®edings,” below.

EXPLORATION RISKS

Minerals exploration is speculative in nature, imes many risks and frequently is unsuccessfulr@lean be no assurance that any
mineralization discovered will result in an increas the proven and probable reserves of the Compfareserves are developed, it can tal
number of years from the initial phases of drillemgd identification of mineralization until prodiar is possible, during which time the
economic feasibility of production may change. Sabtal expenditures are required to establishreserves through drilling, to determine
metallurgical processes to extract metals fromamié in the cases of new properties, to construgiigand processing facilities. As a result
of these uncertainties, no assurance can be diagitite exploration programs undertaken by the Gommvill result in any new commercial
mining operations being brought into operation.

FOREIGN RISKS

The value of the Company's assets may be adveaffelited by political, exchange rate, economic aiher factors in Chile, Canada and
Armenia. Armenia is a former Soviet country in g#ion, and presents concomitant risks. In paréicuh the past, the Company has
experienced delays in the bureaucratic proceshas@xperienced dealings with corrupt officialthatMinistry of Environment and Natural
Resources in Armenia. The Company practices ataégrance program on corruption.

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corrutiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeahd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidme Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and m thited States. Although the Minister took theipms that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiffidials assured the Company to the contrary Adenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On November2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaio filing for international arbitration undére 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagpm@viously undisclosed principal, Mr. AyvazianeT@ompany filed for arbitration
under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("IC&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2010. On June 25, 2008, ,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqred to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry@azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictN#w York. In addition and based on the US Armdilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitis® Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfier Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Setletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhayg of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&ugust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
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the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddbnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfieement in principle, and anticipate that thelfgettiement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The CompaasyIearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligati@sssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As lofueey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagiteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

The Company has previously reported that it israwlaat another company has been using a simifaena the CIS and counsel has recei
assurances the other company would cease usirginilar name and that company was in the procesbhanfging its name. In 2007, that
company has provided official documentation thatis changed its name to one that is not simil@lobal Gold.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respectthese actions will not materially affect the C@np's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.

NO DIVIDENDS

The Company currently anticipates that it will ietall of its future earnings, if any, for use ts operations and does not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the near term future. There @ndyassurance that the Company will pay cashelivid at any time, or that the failure to
pay dividends for periods of time will not advessaffect the market price for the Company's Comi8tock.

CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

Drury J. Gallagher, the Chairman Emeritus, Treas@ecretary, and Director, and Van Z. Krikoriatma@man, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director, own 2,611,453 (6.35%), and 3,150,0005%%shares, respectively, or a total of 5,761,48800%) shares, out of the 41,152,856
shares of the Company's Common Stock issued asthading as of December 31, 2009. The two Compéioers, director Nicholas J.
Aynilian who owns 1,027,002 (2.50%) and NJA Investits, which is controlled by Nicholas J. Ayniliamwns 1,400,000 (3.40%) shares of
Common Stock, entered into a shareholders agreenegetd January 1, 2004, that provides for eatheoparties to the Agreement to vote
such individuals as directors.

Firebird Management, LLC owns a total of 13,438,{8%2.65%) shares, Farallon Capital owns a tot&,586,399 (6.28%), and Persistency
Capital owns a total of 2,000,000 (4.86%), outhaf 41,152,856 shares, of the Company's Common &sg&d and outstanding as of
December 31, 2009.

If these stockholders act in concert, they couldtiad matters requiring approval by our stockhosdéncluding the election of directors and
could have the ability to prevent or cause a cagoiransaction, even if other stockholders, opposé action. The concentration of voting
power could also have the effect of delaying ovprging a change in control which could cause tasksprice to decline.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not Applicable

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES

The Company rents office space in a commerciatimglat 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT witeigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental cos#4df800. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandeiffite space by assuming the leas
the adjacent office space. The assumed lease dmthien one year remaining, through September(®®8, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for @oadtyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeutal cost of $22,860 for that
period. The assumed lease was further extendedghrOctober 15, 2009 at which point the Comparoated the additional space. Messrs.
Gallagher and Krikorian gave personal guarante¢iseo€ompany's performance for the first two yedrthe lease.

For a description of the mining properties in whith Company has an interest, see Item 1 "Deswmnijti Business."
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeahd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidwre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and i tinited States. Although the Minister took theipas that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiftitials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prigpgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On NovembeR2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaio filing for international arbitration undéré 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziahhe Company filed for arbitration
under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("ICE&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2010. On June 25, 2008,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqred to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry®azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictNdw York. In addition and based on the US Armedilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitts¢ Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfier Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Setletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhayg of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&gust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfieement in principle, and anticipate that thelfgettiement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The Compaaylearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Goldlen LLC, which was granted an illegal and competicense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligatiasssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As bfugey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagiteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

The Company is aware that another company basddng Kong began publicly trading shares in the Wigh the name Globalgold

Corp. The Company'’s counsel has sent the othepanyna cease and desist letter for using the simdme and request that it change its
name.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respectthese actions will not materially affect the C@np's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.

PART Il

ITEM 4. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL
BUSINESS

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(a) Shares of the Company's Common Stock tradee@®TC Bulletin Board under the symbol "GBGD." Taage of high and low bid
information for each quarterly period during 200®i 2009 were as follows:

2008 2009
Quarter High* Low* High* Low*
1st $ 0.7C $ 0.3 $ 0.2C $ 0.0t
2nd $ 0.4¢ $ 0.2C $ 0.2C $ 0.0t
3rd $ 0.51 % 0.0 % 0.2C $ 0.0¢
4th $ 0.47 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.2¢ % 0.1c
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* These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices withretail mark-up, mark-down or commissions, araymot reflect actual
transactions. Source: Yahoo Finance

As of April 13, 2010, the Company had 41,152,8561ésl and outstanding shares of its Common Stoek Ciimpany's transfer agent is
American Registrar and Transfer Company, with effiat 342 E. 900 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84hating a telephone number of (801)
363-9065.

(b) As of April 13, 2010, there were approximat&|292 holders of record of shares of the Compabgramon Stock.

(c) The following table provides information abaltares of our Common Stock that may be issued tipoexercise of options and rig
under existing equity compensation plans as of Bz 31, 2009.

Remaining
available for
Number of Weighted issuance under
Securities to  average exercis equity
be issued upon price of compensation
exercise outstanding plans
of oustanding options, warran: (excluding
options, and securities
warrants and reflected in
right rights column
Plan Category (a) (#) (b) ) @) () #
Equity compensation plans (1)
approved by security holders 2,454,16 $ 0.61 545,83
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 0 0 0
Total: 2,454,16 545,83

(1) The Company's 2006 Stock Incentive Plan - Qredib, 2006, the Company's stockholders approweGtbbal Gold Corporation 2006
Stock Incentive Plan (the "2006 Stock IncentivenPlainder which a maximum of 3,000,000 shares ah@on Stock may be issued (subject
to adjustment for stock splits, dividends and tke)l The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan replaces then@my's Option Plan of 1995 which
terminated in June 2005. The Company's 2006 Stuadntive Plan has a ten - year term and will expirdune 15, 2016. On June 15, 2006,
the Company granted options to buy 250,000 shdresnomon stock, at an exercise price of $1.70 pares to the then Chairman and CEO,
Drury Gallagher. On June 15, 2006, the Company giapnted options to buy 62,500 shares of commarkstd an exercise price of $1.70 per
share, to the Controller, Jan Dulman. On Septerh®cP006, the Company granted options to buy 2@sb@res of common stock, at an
exercise price of $1.25 per share, to the thenf@merating Officer, Michael T. Mason. On Januar®007, the Company granted options to
buy 83,334 shares of common stock, at an exercice of $0.88 per share, to the Senior Vice Pregifter Exploration and Development,
Hrayr Agnerian. On January 11, 2007, the Compaagtgd options to each of the five directors to b0§,000 (500,000 total) shares of
common stock, at an exercise price of $0.86 paresh@n June 15, 2007, the Company granted optohay 116,666 shares of common
stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per shartg®enior Vice President for Exploration and Depeient, Hrayr Agnerian. On June 15,
2007, the Company granted options to buy 150,086eshof common stock, at an exercise price of $peB3hare, to the Chief Financial
Officer, Jan Dulman. On June 20, 2007, Michad\fédson, the Company’s President, resigned from diitipn and forfeited options to buy
100,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi§1.25 and his additional vested options to 2,000 shares of common stock have
expired unexercised as of December 31, 2008. Qob@c1, 2007, the Company granted options to B§AD shares of common stock, a
exercise price of $1.00 per share, to a consulRmi| Airasian, which expired on December 31, 2008. April 8, 2008, the Company gran
options to each of the five directors to buy 100,(800,000 total) shares of common stock, at anceseeprice of $0.45 per share. On March
31, 2009, three months after the termination ohiployment, Hrayr Agnerian’s vested options to B0®,000 shares of common stock have
expired unexercised according to the terms of mpleyment agreement. On May 18, 2009, the Compaangted options to each of the five
directors to buy 100,000 (500,000 total) sharesoofimon stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 paesian May 18, 2009, pursuant to Mr.
Gallagher’'s employment agreement extension undecdmtract and as confirmed by the independent easgiion committee and board of
directors, Mr. Gallagher was granted stock optiongurchase 166,667 shares of common stock of dmep@ny at $0.20 per share vesting on
November 18, 2009. On May 18, 2009, the Compaagtgd to Courtney Fellowes, the Comg’s Vice President of Business Development
and Investor Relations, stock options to purch@g0D0 shares of common stock of the Company 20%er share vesting on June 18,
2009. On August 12, 2009, the Company grantediidQulman, the Company’s Chief Financial Officstpck options to purchase 225,000



shares of common stock of the Company at $0.14lpeme (based on the closing price at his reneveafing in equal quarterly installments
over the term of his employment agreement.

ITEM 5. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLA N OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsdrin conjunction with our financial
statements and related notes included elsewhenési‘\nnual Report on Form 10-K.

When used in this report, the words "expect(sgelfs)", "believe(s)", "will", "may", "anticipate(sand similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Such stateraeme subject to certain risks and uncertaintidésghwcould cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. Readers are caatiot to place undue reliance on these forwarklihg statements, and are urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclesuglsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
COMPARISON OF TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

During the twelve-month period ended December 8092the Company's administrative and other exmenwsee $2,151,692 which
represented a decrease of $1,395,260 from $3,52&h38e same period last year. The expense dexveas primarily attributable to lower
stock compensation expense of $612,727 less tlegpribr year’'s period, compensation expense of $882less than the prior year’s period,
legal fees of $80,699 less than the prior yeart®peand travel expenses of $12,984 less thapribe year’s period.

During the twelvemonth period ended December 31, 2009, the Compemgts exploration costs were $665,453 which reprieska decrea
of $2,461,813 from $3,127,266 in the same peristiyaar. The expense decrease was primarily attiifeito the decreased mining activit
the Canadian properties of $30,303, Marjan propair§425,013, Tukhmanuk property of $1,697,722,Gletik property of $98,877, and at
the Chilean property of $209,898.

During the twelve-month period ended December 8092the Company's amortization and depreciatigeeses were $1,163,653 which
represented a decrease of $57,838 from $1,221@k isame period last year. The expense decressprimarily attributable to the
decreased depreciation expense of $31,171, ardkttreased amortization of licenses of $26,667.

During the twelve-month period ended December 8092the Company had interest expenses of $559h@h represented an increase of
$372,399 from $187,008 in the same period last. y&ae expense increase was attributable to araserin interest expense of $271,997 on
note payable to directors and an increase intesgsnse of $100,402 on a secured line of credit doé to additional borrowings.

During the twelve-month period ended December 8092the Company had revenue of $136,641 whiclesemted an increase of $122,430
from $14,211 in the same period last year. Theegme in revenue is primarily attributable to aréase in sales of gold concentrate of
$136,641 offset by a decrease in royalty incom&1df,211.

The Company had a gain from a nonrefundable depositjoint venture in 2009 of $50,000 compared koss from sale of joint ventures in
2008 of $765,264. The difference is due to the @amy in 2008 selling its interest in the Ipun arfdl@® island properties in Chile at a loss
of $387,764 and its interest in the Cochrane Paoggaty in Canada at a loss of $377,500.

The Company had interest income of $155 in 200 whepresented a decrease of $2,409 from $2,564tfite same period last year. The
decrease is attributable to lower average casmbalia the United States bank accounts and lovterdst rates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company continues to experience liquidity arajes.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company's total asgats $6,256,393, of which $29,551 consisted ofi cascash equivalents.

The Company's expected plan of operation for thenciar year 2010 is:

(a) To expand the Tukhmanuk plant capacity to 3D@{O@nnes per year, to continue and to expand gudidsilver production at the
Tukhmanuk property in Armenia, to generate incomenfoffering services from the ISO certified laleogting at Tukhmanuk, and to

continue to explore this property to confirm higtal reserve reports, and to explore and develogaviaGetik and other mining properties in
Armenia and to generate cash flow and establisth, gidler and other reserves;

21






(b) To generate revenue by production at an irsfigl selected Guadalupe, of the over 20 potesitizd identified, at the Pureo property in
Chile through the Company’s Global Gold Valdividsigdiary and conduct further development, exploratand mining at these properties;

(c) To review and acquire additional mineral begupnoperties; and
(d) Pursue additional financing through privatecplaents, debt and/or joint ventures.

The Company retained the right until December 80920 elect to participate at a level of up to 20%h Sterlite Gold Ltd. or any of its
affiliates in any exploration project undertakerAirmenia. This agreement is governed by New Yovkdad includes New York courts as
choice of forum. On October 2, 2006, Vedanta ResesiPIc announced that its tender offer to takérabaf Sterlite Gold Ltd. was success
which made it a successor to the twenty percericfyzation with Sterlite Gold Ltd. In September 20 edanta (and Sterlite) announced that
they had closed a stock sale transaction with Gading Ltd., which made GeoProMining Ltd. andatf§iliates the successors to the 20%
participation right. The Company is now reviewlegal options to enforce the 20% right.

The Company retains the right to participate upG®o in any new projects undertaken by the Armen@mpany Sipan 1, LLC and succes:
to and affiliates of Iberian Resources Limited, ethmerged with Tamaya Resources Limited, in Armemi@é August 15, 2015. In addition,
the Company has a 2.5% NSR royalty on productiomfthe Lichkvaz-Tei and Terterasar mines as weftam any mining properties in a 20
kilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in southérmenia. On February 28, 2007, Iberian Resoutg@ited announced its merger with
Tamaya Resources Limited. However, as of Dece®bg?008, Iberian Resources and Tamaya filed fokhgptcy in Australia and the
Company has taken action to protect its rights20@9, the bankruptcy administrators sold the shaf&ipan 1, LLC to Terranova Overseas
company organized in the United Arab Emirates Wwhim information and belief, includes local andefgn investors and which also
assumes the continuing obligations of Sipan 1, kb Global Gold.

The Company also anticipates spending additiomad$un Armenia and Chile for further exploratiordatevelopment of its other properties
as well as acquisition of new properties. The Camypis also reviewing new technologies in explom&nd processing. The Company
anticipates that it will issue additional equityd®bt to finance its planned activities. The Conypanticipates that it might obtain additional
financing from the holders of its Warrants to pash 4,750,000 shares of Common Stock of the Cormgtzany exercise price of $0.15 per
share, which expire on December 9, 2013. If théaerants were exercised in full, the Company waeltkive $712,500 in gross proceeds.

The Company may engage in research and developelated to exploration and processing at Tukhmathwkng 2010, and anticipates
purchasing processing plant and equipment assets.

The Company has received a going concern opinam fts independent public accounting firm. Thisamethat our auditors believe that
there is doubt that we can continue as an on-gmiisgness for the next twelve months unless we eadsitional capital to pay our bills. This
is because the Company has not generated any stidtistavenues. The Company has been able toreenbased upon its receipt of funds
from the issuance of equity securities and by aggyiassets or paying expenses by issuing stodit, desale of assets. The Company's
continued existence is dependent upon its contimbdiy to raise funds through the issuance ofisiéies. Management's plans in this regard
are to obtain other financing until profitable oggon and positive cash flow are achieved and raaiad.

See “Subsequent Events” section for informatiorardimg financing closed with Industrial Mineral# $IM”) and Armbusinessbank Close
Joint Stock Company (“ABB”) in Yerevan, Armeniae8des these two financings, there are no firm ciomemts from third parties to
provide additional financing and the Company nestiitional funds in order to conduct any activeimgndevelopment and production
operations in the foreseeable future. Especiallighit of the international financial crisis stagiin 2008, there can be no assurance that any
financing for acquisitions or future projects vikk available for such purposes or that such fimandf available, would be on terms favora

or acceptable to the Company.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Stock Based Compensation - The Company periodicalyes shares of Common Stock for services redderfor financing costs. Such

shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.
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The Company accounts for the grant of stock andaméawards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Campgon — Stock Compensation
(“ASC 718"). ASC 718 requires companies to recagrin the statement of operations the grant-datedtue of warrants and stock options
and other equity based compensation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was deuetibfor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions that have no restrictions and are
fully transferable. In addition, option models ueg the input of highly subjective assumptionduding the expected stock price volatility.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200&sseand loss per share include the actual dexdufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation expenthe years ended December 31, 2009 and 200&$44&8192 and $1,031,919,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

Comprehensive Income - The Company has adoptedTRfp@ 220, "Comprehensive Income.” Comprehensigerme is comprised of net
income (loss) and all changes to stockholdersteddeéficit), except those related to investmentstockholders, changes in paid-in capital
and distribution to owners.

The following table summarizes the computationemeding net loss to comprehensive loss for thaeyeaded December 31, 2009 and 2!

Year Ending December 31,

2009 2008
Net loss $ (4,320,56) $ (8,953,11))
Unrealized gain (loss) arising
during year $ (499,10) $ 1,195,49
Comprehensive loss $ (4,819,66) $ (7,757,62)

Acquisition, Exploration and Development Costs nital property acquisition costs are capitalizeddifionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until ogigons commence. All such capitalized
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia mnge from 10 years, based on the minimum original license t&racquisition, but do n
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costpotycommercial development of an ore body, theiegigle capitalized costs would then be
amortized using the units-of-production methodplBration costs, costs incurred to maintain curgentiuction or to maintain assets on a
standby basis are charged to operations. Costisasfdoned projects are charged to operations upmmanment. The Company evaluates,
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if these
costs are in excess of their net realizable vahakifsa permanent impairment needs to be recordée periodic evaluation of carrying value
of capitalized costs and any related property,t@aid equipment costs are based upon expectedioashand/or estimated salvage value in
accordance with ASC Topic 360, "Accounting for thairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Management red@md evaluates the net carrying value of alliteesl, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occuresfother events or changes in circumstancesntiaate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net réddizaalue of each property based on the estimatdicounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegnt and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating sefjare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.
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ITEM 6A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company does not hold any market risk sensitisieuments nor does it have any foreign currena@hange agreements. The Company
maintains an inventory of unprocessed ore and gahdentrate which are carried on the balance stseet December 31, 2009 at $772,298
and $32,855, respectively, and unprocessed orgaldcconcentrate of $796,235 and $98,311, respegtias of December 31, 2008 with our
Armenian subsidiary Mego-Gold LLC. The Companysinet maintain any commodity hedges or futuresngements with respect to this
unprocessed ore.

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisiqypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institbns in the United States and Armenia. Bank digpasthe United States did not exceed
federally insured limits as of December 31, 2008 Becember 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009 awdDber 31, 2008, the Company
had approximately $250 and $10,000, respectivelrmenian bank deposits and $21,000 and $27,@8pectively, in Chilean bank
deposits, which may not be insured. The Companybaexperienced any losses in such accounts thrbegember 31, 2009 and as of the
date of this filing.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency
fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, polificiibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements ®Qbmpany, notes thereto and report of Indeper@eriified Public Accountants thereon
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 amémber 31, 2008, by Sherb & Co, LLP, are attachedth as a part of, and at the end of,
this report.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable

ITEM 8A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurg

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresliéfised in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgateder the Security Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that aréggded to ensure that information that would be egflito be disclosed in Exchange Act
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteelpwithin the time periods specified in the Sé&@s and Exchange Commission’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulatedicommunicated to our management, including’tiesident and Chief Operating
Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Finah@ifficer (our Principal Executive Officer and Reipal Financial Officer, respectively),
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardiqguired disclosure.

As of December 31, 2009, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including the
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Finandixficer, of the effectiveness of the design andragion of our disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Priné&paktutive Officer and Principal Financial Officesncluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of theoderovered by this Annual Report.
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(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaiaheguate internal control over financial reportig defined in the securities laws,
internal control over financial reporting is a pegs designed by, or under the supervision of, dacipal Executive and Principal Financial
Officers and effected by our Board of Directors nagement, and other personnel, to provide reasem@aslirance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles and includes those policies and procesithiat (i) pertain to the maintenance of recdndsih reasonable detail accurately and fi
reflect the transactions and dispositions of ogets (ii) provide reasonable assurance that tcéinga are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanite generally accepted accounting principles, dnad dur receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorizatidne@anagement and directors; and (iii) provide reabte assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiong as disposition of our assets that could have terad effect on the financial statements.

The Company's internal control over financial reéjmaris designed to provide reasonable assuramgaeding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external reporting purposes in accordandk generally accepted accounting
principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide mrdgonable assurance with respect to financiedratnt preparation and

presentation. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjech#risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effantise of the internal controls over financial rejpgr{as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of Dece®be?009, based on the framework in Internal Comttegrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadltvay Commission.

Management, including the Principal Executive andd®al Financial Officers, based on their evaluabf the Company's internal control
over financial reporting, have concluded that tleenpany's internal control over financial reportimgs effective as of December 31, 2009.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company's registered public accogrfiim regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management's report was nbject to attestation by the Company's registetddipaccounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom that permit the Company to provide only nggmaent's report in this annual
report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repating

There have been no changes in the Company's ihterniol over financial reporting that occurredtiire fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the Company's internal control ofiaancial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable
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PART IlI
ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 9 is incorgted by reference from the Company's Proxy Statereéting to the 2010 Annual Meeti
of Stockholders scheduled to be held on or arouné 18, 2010.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 10 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 18, 2010.

ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning required by this Itemidincorporated by reference from the Companydxy6tatement relating to the 2010
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be beldr around June 18, 2010.

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 12 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 18, 2010.

ITEM 13. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 13 is incaorgted by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténedating to the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 18, 2010.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements.

The following documents are filed as part of tlepart: Financial Statements of the Company, inclgdhe report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants, Balance Sheet, Statements ef@ipns, Statements of Stockholders' Equity (D@fiexd Comprehensive Income (Los
Statements of Cash Flow and Notes to FinanciakBtants: as of and for the years ended Decemb@089,and December 31, 2008.

(b) Exhibits.
Exhibit 3.1

Exhibit 3.2

Exhibit 10.1
Exhibit 10.2
Exhibit 10.3
Exhibit 10.4
Exhibit 10.5
Exhibit 10.6

Exhibit 10.7

Exhibit 10.8

Exhibit 10.9

Exhibit 10.10

Exhibit 10.11
Exhibit 10.12
Exhibit 10.13
Exhibit 10.14
Exhibit 10.15

Exhibit 10.16

Exhibit 10.17

Exhibit 10.18

Amended and Restated Certificatenabrporation of the Company, effective NovemberZim3. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of then@any, effective November 20, 2003. (2)

Employment Agreement, dated as atiday 1, 2007, by and between Global Gold Corponatind Hrayr Agnerian. (3)
Labrador Uranium Claims Agreemerated January 18, 2007. (4)

Agreement to Acquire Option on Cate Pond Property dated April 12, 2007. (5)

First Amendment of the January ZB)& Share Purchase Agreement (Athelea Investmaai€ as of May 30, 2007. (6)
Employment Agreement, dated as okJL5, 2007, by and between Global Gold CorporatiwhJan Dulman. (7)
Employment Agreement, dated as okJi5, 2007, by and between Global Gold CorporatimhLester Caesar. (8)

Amended Employment Agreement, dase of June 15, 2007, by and between Global Gotgd&ation and Hrayr
Agnerian. (9)

Nominating and Governance Charter dated June I¥,.Z00)

Madre De Dios Mining Property Joifénture Agreement and Options for Chiloe and Imlarid properties dated as of
August 9, 2007. (11)

Commitment to Contribute Mining @assion to a Contractual Mining Company (Unoffigalglish Translation) dated as
of August 19, 2007. (12)

Contractual Mining Company Agreeingmofficial English Translation) dated as of Gmér 29, 2007. (13)

Amended Terms for Options on Chiéwel Ipun Island Properties dated March 31, 2008 canfirmed April 8, 2008. (14)
Chiloe and Ipun Island Propertie¢eSAgreement dated as of October 3, 2008. (15)

Royalty Agreement on Cochrane PBraperty, Newfoundland dated as of October 17, 2008

Private Placement Agreement, d&tedember 8, 2008. (17)

Material Contract — Amendment obkdl Gold Valdivia Joint Venture Terms, SeparatbProperties and Royalty
Agreement (18)

Employment Agreement, dated as wgust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corporand Van Krikorian. (19)

Employment Agreement, dated as afust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold MiningCland Ashot Boghossian.
(20)
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Exhibit 10.19 Employment Agreement, dated asofust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corpwrand Jan Dulman. (21)
Exhibit 10.20 Employment Agreement, dated as ogust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corporand Lester Caesar. (22)

Exhibit 10.21 Armenian State Natural Resourcesray Decision N234 on the Recalculation of Resefwe$oukhmanuk — delivered
Friday, November 13, 2009 — Partial Unofficial Tskation . (23)

Exhibit 10.22 Material Contract — Marjan Joint V@ Agreement dated as of December 18, 2009. (24)

Exhibit 10.23 Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL®I@ Concentrate Supply Contract with Industrial ktials SA dated as of February
25, 2010. (25)

Exhibit 10.24 Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL@cirity Agreement with Industrial Minerals SA dagesiof February 25, 2010. (26)
Exhibit 10.25 Material Contract — Global Gold Coration Guarantee to Industrial Minerals SA datedfaFebruary 25, 2010. (27)
Exhibit 10.26 Material Contract — Marjan Joint \@re Agreement dated as of March 24, 2010. (28)

Exhibit 10.27 Material Contract — (Unofficial Egit Translation) Mego Gold, LLC non revolving creliie from Armbusinessbank
signed March 26, 2010. (29)

Exhibit 21 List of Subsidiaries.
Exhibit 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandeyQAct of 2002.
Exhibit 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandsyQAct of 2002.

Exhibit 32.1 Certification of the Chief Executi@ficer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant tol&.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002.

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.the Company's annual report onK8B for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.zhe Company's annual report onK8B for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi71t@. the Company's annual report on 10-KSB foryter ended December 31, 2006 filed
with the SEC on April 2, 2007.

(4) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB1i0.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on January 24, 2007.
(5) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiBli0.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on April 13, 2007.
(6) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiBli.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on May 31, 2007.

(7) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi5lid. the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBlierdecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.

(8) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibilio.the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBliersecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.

(9) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#1id. the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBlierdecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.
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(10) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhititt®.the Company's current report on Form 8-K filéth the SEC on June 20, 2007.

(11) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on September 7, 2007.
(12) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibiti@ the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on September 7, 2007.
(13) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#ltd the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikgth the SEC on November 1, 2007.
(14) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikdth the SEC on April 9, 2008.

(15) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on October 8, 2008.
(16) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on October 22, 2008.
(17) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitLbGo the Company’s annual report on Form 10-&dfilvith the SEC on April 15, 2009.
(18) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib1d the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on July 29, 2009.

(19) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibittto the quarterly report on IDfor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iitdthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(20) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl1Go the quarterly report on Ifor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iiddthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(21) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl2Go the quarterly report on Ifor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iiiddthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(22) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibittBao the quarterly report on IDfor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iitdthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(23) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on November 19, 2009.
(24) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on December 22, 2009.
(25) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(26) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#t@ the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(27) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi610 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.

(28) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#ltd the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 25, 2010.

(29) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 30, 2010.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Van Z. Krikorian

Van Z. Krikorian, Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

April 15, 2010
Date

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

/s/ Jan Dulman 4/15/10 /sl Van Z. Krikorian 4/15/10
Jan Dulman Van Z. Krikorian, Chairman, Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer Officer and Director

/sl Drury J. Gallagher 4/15/10 /sl Nicholas J. Aynilian 4/15/10
Drury J. Gallagher Nicholas J. Ayniliar

Chairman Emeritus, Director

Treasurer and Director

/sl Lester S. Caesar 4/15/10 /sl Harry Gilmore 4/15/10
Lester S. Caesar Harry Gilmore

Controller Director

/s/ lan C. Hague 4/15/10

lan C. Hague

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors Globald3Corporation and Subsidiaries (An Exploratioadggt Company)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Global Gold Corporation and Subsisain Exploration Stage Compal
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 20@Bthe related consolidated statements of operatindscomprehensive income,
stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows foe {years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Weotlalidit the period beginning January
1, 1995 through December 31, 2009. These consetidatancial statements are the responsibilithef€ompany's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finastaiaiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirel control over financial reporting.
Accordingly we express no such opinion. An auditudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supgdte amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assgsbe accounting principles used and signifiemiimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@raWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbahsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and shésef their operations and their cash flowstfar years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008 in conformity with accounting principlesngrally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieste been prepared assuming that the Companyamilintie as a going concern. The
Company has incurred significant losses as mohg di@lscribed in Note 2. These issues raise suliastaaubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Management's plaregard to these matters are also described in Adtbe financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result fromdbt&ome of this uncertainty.

/s/Sherb & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants
New York, New York

April 15, 2010
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Inventories

Tax refunds receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LICENSES, net of accumulated amortization of $1,87& and $1,412,340, respectively
DEPOSITS ON CONTRACTS AND EQUIPMENT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulatezpdeciation of $1,982,761 and
$1,591,207, respectively

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Wages payable
Deposit payable
Secured line of credit - short term portion
Current portion of note payable to Direstor
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

SECURED LINE OF CREDIT - LONG TERM PORTION
NOTE PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Common stock $0.001 par, 100,000,000 shares améuhré1,152,856 and 39,187,023

outstanding

at December 31, 2009 anddb&ber 31, 2008, respectively, shares issued and

Additional paid-in-capital

Accumulated deficit prior to developmetsige
Deficit accumulated during the developnm&age
Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

December 31,

2009 2008
$ 29,55, $ 228,37
946,36 1,057,83:
147,91¢ 178,90¢

2,98¢ 8,45¢

10,17¢ 39,14
1,136,99 1,512,71;
2,996,13 3,460,76.
369,42 440,51
1,753,841 2,802,41!

$ 6,256,39. $ 8,216,39"
$ 2,085,17. $ 1,722,39.
1,174,54 131,24:

- 150,00(

486,80 389,00
4,183,23 970,89(
7,929,75: 3,363,62:
57,11 286,94

729,16° 2,625,001
8,716,03! 6,275,561
41,15 39,18’
31,399,57 30,982,35
(2,907,64) (2,907,64)
(33,800,80) (29,480,24)
2,808,08: 3,307,191
(2,459,64) 1,940,83;

$ 6,256,39, $ 8,216,39!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

REVENUES
COST OF GOODS SOLD

GROSS PROFIT

EXPENSES:

General and administrative
Mine exploration costs
Amortization and depreciation
Write-off on investment

Gain on sale of investment
Loss/(Gain) from investment in joint ventures
Interest expense

Bad debt expense

Loss on foreign exchange

Gain on extinguishment of debt
Interest income

TOTAL EXPENSES
Loss from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations:
Loss from discontinued operations

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations

Net Loss Applicable to Common Shareholc

Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gain on investments

Comprehensive Net Loss

NET LOSS PER SHAR-BASIC
AND DILUTED

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES

OUTSTANDING - BASIC AND DILUTED

Cumulative
amount
from
Year Ended January 1, 199
December 31 through
December 31,
2009 2008 2009
(Unaudited)
136,64: $ 14,217 $ 192,68!
63,81: - 63,81:
72,82¢ 14,21 128,87:
2,151,69: 3,546,95: 19,670,47
665,45! 3,127,261 13,874,16
1,163,65. 1,221,49. 4,069,32!
40,88: - 176,60!
- - (2,779,77)
(50,000 765,26: (2,423,70)
559,40° 187,00¢ 1,020,41!
- 151,25( 151,25(
12,45¢ - 193,85:
(150,000 (29,349 (289,76¢)
(15E) (2,569 (357,39))
4,393,39 8,967,32! 33,305,45
(4,320,56) (8,953,119 (33,176,58)
- = 386,411
- - 237,80¢
(4,320,56) (8,953,119 (33,800,80)
(499,10 1,195,49i 2,454,60
- = 353,47!
(4,819,66) $ (7,757,629 $ (30,992,72)
(0.17) $ (0.2¢€)
40,029,43 34,251,12

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERBQUITY (DEFICIT)

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

( An Exploration Stage Enterprise )

Deficit
Accumulated

Accumulated

Additional Prior to and Durin Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in the Development Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Stage Stock Income (Loss) Equity

Balance from February 21, 1980 to December 31, 1994
(Note 1) (Unaudited) 898,07« 89,807 $ 3,147,69. $ (2,907,64) $ - -8 329,85:
Adjustment for the
restatement of par value - (88,909 88,90¢ = = = S

Issuance of stock for acquisition of Eyre

Recources, N.L. 1,000,001 1,00C 849,00( - - - 850,00(
Proceeds received from
private placement 200,00( 20C 421,37 - - - 421,57
Net loss - - - (361,34%) - - (361,344

Balance as December 31,

1995 (Unaudited) 2,098,07. 2,09¢ 4,506,97! (3,268,99) - - 1,240,08!
Warrants exercised 40 - 10C - - - 10C
Net loss - - - (668,577 - - (668,577

Balance as of December 2

1996 (Unaudited) 2,098,11. 2,09¢ 4,507,07! (3,937,57i) - - 571,60:
Issuance of common sto« 2,250,00! 2,25(C 222,75( - - - 225,00(
Net loss - - - (690,74°) - - (690,74°)

Balance as of December &

1997 (Unaudited) 4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,82! (4,628,31) - - 105,85¢
Net income - - - 34,94 - - 34,94+

Balance as of December &

1998 (Unaudited) 4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,82! (4,593,37) - - 140,80(
Purchase of treasury stot - - - - (60,000 - (60,000
Unrealized loss on
investment - - - - - (16,000 (16,000
Net loss - - - (93,826 - - (93,82€)

Balance as of December

1999 (Unaudited) 4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,82! (4,687,19) (60,000 (16,000 (29,02¢)

Issuance of common stock in connection

with settlement 20,00(¢ 20 1,98( - - - 2,00(
Cancellation of treasury
stock (1,000,001) (2,000 (59,000 - 60,00( - -
Settlement of accrued
salary 1,000,001 1,00( 161,50( - - - 162,50(
Sale of warrants - - 65C - - - 65C
Unrealized loss on
investment - - - - - (90,000 (90,000
Net loss - - - (33,34) - = (33,34)

Balance as December 31,

2000 (Unaudited) 4,368,11. 4,36¢ 4,834,95! (4,720,541 - (106,000 12,78
Net loss - - - (26,837 - - (26,837)
Unrealized loan on
investment - - - - - (15,000 (15,000

Balance as of December

2001 (Unaudited) 4,368,11. 4,36¢ 4,834,95! (4,747,37) - (121,000 (29,049
Issuance of common stoc
for compensation 200,00( 20C 9,80( - - - 10,00(
Net loss - - - (60,117 - - (60,117

Unrealized gain on



investment - - - - - 247,40¢ 247,40¢

Balance as of December &
2002 (Unaudited) 4,568,11. 4,56¢ 4,844,75! (4,807,48) - 126,40t 168,24«
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Issuance of common stock for cash:
at $0.25 per share,

January 350,00( 35C 87,15( - - 87,50(
at $0.25 per share, Jul 1,000,001 1,00(C 231,50( - - 232,50(
at $0.50 per share,

October 100,00( 10C 46,40( - - 46,50(
at $0.50 per share,

October 400,00( 40C 185,60( - - 186,00(

Issuance of common stock for compensatior
at $0.25 per share,

February 1,800,00t 1,80( (1,800 - - -
at $0.25 per share, Jui 900,00( 90C (900) = = ©
at $0.25 per share,

December 90,00(¢ 90 (90) - - -

Amortization of deferred

compensation - - 165,80: - - 165,80:

Issuance of common stock for services:
at $0.25 per share,

January 500,00( 50C 24,50( - - 25,00(
at $0.25 per share, Ap 250,00( 25C 62,25( - - 62,50(

Shares cancelled in September, which were
issued in January (500,000 (500) (24,500 - - (25,000

Shares issued at $0.25 p

share for
accounts payable in

April 100,00( 10C 24,90( - - 25,00(

Fractional share

adjustment 20 = = = = =

Unrealized gain on

investment - - - - (95,279 (95,279

Net loss - - - (616,82() - (616,82()

Balance as of December &
2003 (Unaudited) 9,558,13. 9,55¢ 5,645,56° (5,424,30) 31,12¢ 261,94¢

Issuance of common stoc

for compensation 250,00( 25C (250) =

Forfeiture of common

stock for compensation (526,83) (527) 527 -

Sale of common stock 3,000,00¢ 3,00( 1,482,001 - - 1,485,00!

Issuance of common stoc

for services 90,00(¢ 90 (90) -

Issuance of common stoc

for payable 240,00( 24C 113,26( 113,50(

Amortization of unearned compensation 316,75¢ 316,75¢

Net loss (688,039 (688,039

Unrealized gain on

investment - - - - (31,129 (31,129

Balance as of December @
2004 (Unaudited) 12,611,30 12,61 7,557,771 (6,112,34,) - 1,458,03
Issuance of common stock for compensatior

at $0.50 per share,

January 850,00( 85C (850) = = ©
at $1.00 per share, Jui 170,00( 17¢C (170 - - -
at $1.50 per share,

December 45,00( 45 (45) - = =

Sale of common stock 4,000,001 4,00 2,996,001 - - 3,000,00¢

Less: Selling expense for sale of common stor - (39,000 (39,000

Exercise of warrants 220,00( 22C 54,78( 55,00(

Amortization of unearned compensation 292,99 292,99:

Net loss (2,309,18) (2,309,18)

Foreign currency

translation adjustment - - - - (38,51)) (38,51))

Balance as of December &
2005 (Unaudited) 17,896,30 17,89¢ 10,861,47 (8,421,53) (38,51) 2,419,33:
Issuance of common stock for compensatior

at $1.50 per share,

February 274,00( 274 35,72¢ - - 36,00(
at $1.70 per share, Jui 925,00( 92t (925) - = =
at $1.25 per share,

September 200,00( 20C (200) - - -

Forfeiture of common

stock for compensation (40,000 (40) 40 -



Issuance of common stock for payable:
at $1.15 per share,

January 100,00(
Sale of common stock 10,400,00
Less: Selling expense for sale of common sto

Issuance of options for compensation
Exercise of warrants 3,000,00t¢

10C
10,40(

3,00

114,90
12,989,58
(764,95)
225,89:
2,247,001
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115,00
12,999,98
(764,95)
225,89:
2,250,001




Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2007 (27,950 (27,950
Amortization of unearned compensation 1,017,74: 1,017,74.
Net loss (5,296,37i) (5,296,37i)

Other comprehensive

income - - - - 842,73: 842,73:
Balance as of December &

2006 32,755,30 32,75¢ 26,698,33 (13,717,90) 804,22( 13,817,41
Issuance of common stock for compensatior
at $0.88 per share,

January 1 83,33¢ 83 (83) - - -

at $0.86 per share,

January 11 50,00( 50 (50) - = =

at $0.83 per share, Jui 286,66¢ 287 (287) - - -

Forfeiture of common

stock for compensation (172,500 a73) (3,78¢) (3,95¢)
Issuance of common stock for payable:

at $2.00 per share,

September (2006) 500,00( 50C 999,50( 1,000,00t

at $0.86 per share,

January 63,25( 63 54,33 54,39t

at $0.85 per share, Ap 150,00( 15C 127,35( 127,50(
Issuance of options for compensation 481,44¢ 481,44t

Exercise of warrants 150,00( 15C 16,35( 16,50(
Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2008 (14,850 (14,850

Accrual of interest on not (26,617 (26,619
Amortization of unearned compensation 986,50( 986,50(

Net loss (9,716,88) (9,716,88()

Other comprehensive

income - - - - 1,307,48! 1,307,48!
Balance as of December &

2007 33,866,05 33,86¢ 29,318,14 (23,434,78) 2,111,701 8,028,93:
Issuance of common stock for compensatior
at $0.17 per share,

November 11 200,00( 20C 33,80( - - 34,00(

at $0.10 per share,

December 10 20,00( 20 (20 - - -
Issuance of common stock for payable:

at $0.55 per share,

February 11 153,75( 154 84,40¢ 84,56:

at $0.17 per share,

November 11 100,00( 10C 16,90( 17,00(
Issuance of options for compensation 279,92¢ 279,92t

Conversion of note

receivable into shares (152,779 (159 (48,750 (48,909
Issuance of common stock for acquistion:

at $0.45 per share, Ap

8 250,00( 25C 112,25( 112,50(

Accrual of interest on not (2,55%) (2,555

Sale of common stock 4,750,001 4,75( 470,25( - - 475,00(
Amortization of unearned compensation 717,99: 717,99

Net loss (8,953,11) (8,953,11)

Other comprehensive

income - - - - 1,195,491 1,195,491
Balance as of December &

2008 39,187,02 39,187 30,982,35! (32,387,89) 3,307,191 1,940,83:
Issuance of common stock for compensatior
at $0.20 per share, Me

18 333,33 332 (339 - - =

at $0.10 per share, Jul

1 1,387,50! 1,38¢ (1,38¢) - - -

at $0.14 per share,

August 1 245,00( 24E (245) = = ©
Issuance of options for compensation 130,27 130,27
Amortization of unearned compensation 288,91¢ 288,91¢

Net loss (4,320,56) (4,320,56)

Other comprehensive

income (loss) - - - - (499,10 (499,10

Balance as of December &



2009 41,152,855 $ 41,15: $ 31,399,577 $  (36,708,45) $ - 3 2,808,08: $ (2,459,64)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of unearned compensation
Stock option expense
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense
Accrual of stock bonuses
Write-off of investment
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations
Loss/(Gain) from investment in joint ventures
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Gain on sale of investments
Bad debt expense
Other non-cash expenses
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Other current and non current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Wages payable

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of Armenia mining interest
Proceeds from sale of Tamaya Common Stock
Proceeds from sale of investment in common stocktedlite Gold
Investment in joint ventures
Investment in mining licenses

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from private placement offering
Repurchase of common stock
Secured line of credit
Note payable to Directors
Warrants exercised

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH

Cumulative
amount
from
Year Ended January 1, 1995
December 31, through
December 31,
2009 2008 2009
(Unaudited)
(4,320,56) $ (8,953,11) $ (33,800,80)
288,91¢ 717,99: 3,786,70
130,27: 279,92! 1,117,53
464,63: 491,29¢ 2,102,65!
699,02: 730,19: 2,192,58;
- - 56,61:
40,88: - 176,60!
- - 237,80t
- 765,26: (2,373,70)
(150,00() (29,349 (289,76¢)
- - (2,779,77)
- 151,25( 151,25(
- (17,45 155,56’
207,10( 166,94¢ (1,807,18)
362,78: 302,17¢ 2,592,79i
499,30( 187,00¢ 686,30
1,043,30- 131,24 1,174,54
(734,349 (5,076,61) (26,620,26)
(115,349 (703,05) (4,135,91)
- - 2,891,15!
- - 4,957,73
- 246,76°
- - (260,00()
- (9,000 (5,756,10)
(115,349 (712,05)) (2,056,36)
- 475,00( 18,155,10.
- - (25,000
(172,426 655,29: 482,86!
857,51( 3,429,63. 4,264,92!
- - 2,322,25!
685,08 4,559,92. 25,200,14
(34,206 1,159,08, 3,494,68!




NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASI

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Noncash Transaction

Stock issued for deferred compensation
Stock forfeited for deferred compensation
Stock issued for mine acquisition

Stock issued for accounts payable

Shares cancelled for receivable settlement
Mine acquisition costs in accounts payables

(198,820 (69,667) 18,19¢

228,37 298,03 11,35:
$ 29,55, $ 228,37: $ 29,55
$ - $ - 3 2,68¢
$ 60,107 $ - $ 75,52¢
$ 239,71 $ 36,000 $ 3,869,21
$ -3 - 3 742,50
$ - $ 112,500 $ 1,227,501
$ -3 17,00 $ 25,00(
$ - $ - 3 77,91
$ - $ - 3 50,69

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Global Gold Corporation (the “Company” or “Globabl@”) is currently in the exploration stage. lteisgaged in exploration for, and
development and mining of, gold, uranium, and otharerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. The Comjgdmyadquarters are located in
Greenwich, CT and its subsidiaries maintain offiaed staff in Yerevan, Armenia, Santiago, Chile @ontnto, Canada. The Company was
incorporated as Triad Energy Corporation in theeStdé Delaware on February 21, 1980 and, as fudhscribed hereafter, conducted other
business prior to January 1, 1995. During 1995Qbmpany changed its name from Triad Energy Cotjmordo Global Gold Corporation to
pursue certain gold and copper mining rights infthhmer Soviet Republics of Armenia and Georgiae TTlompany has not established prc
and probable reserves, in accordance per SEC hydBstde 7, at any of its properties. The Compastock is publicly traded. The Compi
employs approximately 100 people globally on a yeand basis and an additional 200 people on @sahbasis.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on #hloration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @n expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia including ttenpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiiatand subsidiaries.

In Chile, the Company'focus is primarily on the exploration, developinemd production of gold at the Pureo propertyautk central Chile
near Valdivia. The Company is also engaged intifiémg exploration and production opportunitiesoditer locations in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uranium ratiolo activities in the provinces of Newfoundleamt Labrador, but has phased out
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of which the Company operatesasiffellows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsiidisy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint csvoea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbial Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global QGaldenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia ams @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyelsas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquiré@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHAL C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whiclidhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan propeiti Armenia. On December 18,
2009, the Company entered into an agreement witthe@aoutlining the terms of a joint venture on @@mpany’s Marjan property in
Armenia (“Marjan JV"). See Subsequent Events foupdate on the Marjan JV and Marjan license.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5&#the Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldLC, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global GdMiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaagaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian compaitlgeléa Investments, CISC
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") and its apynoately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/uranium lexation license area in the
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @iy\0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the rerimajr20% interest in Getik Mining
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wf 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC.
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On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Goshium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium"), as a whollyvoed subsidiary, in the State
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium expdoraictivities in Canada. Global Gold Uranium waslified to do business in t
Canadian Province of Newfoundland and Labrador.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢nvéh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumes a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios an@édproperties in south central Chile, near ValdiViae name of the joint venture comp:

is Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C.M. (tbhkl Gold Valdivia”).

The accompanying consolidated financial statemgmsent the available development stage activitfesmation of the Company from
January 1, 1995, the period commencing the Compapgrations as Global Gold Corporation and Sufséedi, through December 31, 2009.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis for Presentation - The consolidated firsdustatements at December 31, 2009 and 2008,arttld years then ended were prepared
assuming that the Company would continue as a gamingern. Since its inception, the Company, anarafibn stage enterprise, has
generated revenues of $192,685 (other than interesine, the proceeds from the sale of an intémemt Armenian mining venture with
Iberian Resources Ltd., and the sale of commorksibmarketable securities received as considaratierewith) while incurring losses in
excess of $33,800,000. Management pursued additiorestors and lending institutions interestedimancing the Company's projects.
However, there is no assurance that the Companhyhbtain the financing that it requires or will a@be profitable operations. The Company
expected to incur additional losses for the nean tentil such time as it would derive substant@lanues from the Armenian mining interests
acquired by it or other future projects. These arattaised substantial doubt about the Companifig/dab continue as a going concern. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements wepared on a going concern basis, which conteatpthe realization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal coursehafsiness. The accompanying consolidated finastiééments at December 31, 2009 and .
and for the years then ended did not include apysadents that might be necessary should the Coypaminable to continue as a going
concern.

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear ymounts to conform to the current year presenta

b. Use of Estimates - The preparation of finansiatements in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimat@sssumptions that affect the reported amountsssta and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefnges and expenses during the reporting perioaiahcesults could differ from those
estimates.

c¢. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash éntivaonsist of all cash balances and highly donvestments with a remaining maturity
of three months or less when purchased and aredat fair value.

d. Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Compafinancial instruments includes cash, receiv@tdad accounts payable and accrued
expenses. The Company believes that the carryirggats of these instruments are reasonable estirofthsir fair value because of the
short-term nature of such instruments.

e. Inventory - Inventory consists of the followiagDecember 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Ore $ 772,29¢ $ 796,23!
Concentrate 32,85t 98,31:
Materials, supplies and other 141,21¢ 163,28
Total Inventory $ 946,36¢ $ 1,057,83

Ore inventory consists of unprocessed ore at thiéanhianuk mining site in Armenia. The concentrate amprocessed ore are stated at the
lower of cost or market.




f. Deposits on Contracts and Equipment - The Combas made several deposits for purchases, theitgajbwhich is for the potential
acquisition of new properties, and the remaindettie purchase of mining equipment.

0. Tax Refunds Receivable - The Company is sulbje¢alue Added Tax ("VAT tax") on all expendituresArmenia at the rate of 20%. The
Company is entitled to a credit against this taxaimls any sales on which it collects VAT tax. Then@®any is carrying a tax refund
receivable based on the value of its in-processritory which it intends on selling in the next tweemonths, at which time they will collect
20% VAT tax from the purchaser which the Companly ma entitled to keep and apply against its credit

h. Net Loss Per Share - Basic net loss per shérasisd on the weighted average number of commor@ndon equivalent shares
outstanding. Potential common shares includablbdércomputation of fully diluted per share resalts not presented in the consolidated
financial statements as their effect would be diititive. The total number of warrants plus opsidhat are exercisable at December 31, 200¢
and 2008 was 6,997,917 and 6,352,500, respectively.

i. Stock Based Compensation - The Company perifidissues shares of common stock for servicesemttor for financing costs. Such
shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.

The Company accounts for the grant of stock andamés awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Gamagtion — Stock Compensation
(ASC 718). ASC 718 requires companies to recodnitlee statement of operations the grant-datevidire of warrants and stock options
and other equity based compensation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was dgyetiofor use in estimating the fair value of tradetions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, optionuation models require the input of highly subjegtassumptions including the expected stock
price volatility.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200&sseand loss per share include the actual dedufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation exfenge year ended December 31, 2009 and 20084WE3,192 and $1,031,919,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

j. Comprehensive Incon- The Company has adopted ASC Topic 220, “Compr&kierincome.” Comprehensive income is comprised of
income (loss) and all changes to stockholderstgddeéficit), except those related to investmentstockholders, changes in paid-in capital
and distribution to owners.

The following table summarizes the computationemeding net loss to comprehensive loss for thaeyeaded December 31, 2009 and 2!

Year Ending December 3

2009 2008
Net loss $ (432056) $  (8,953,11)
Unrealized gain (loss) arising
during year $ (499,10) $ 1,195,49
Comprehensive loss $ (4,819,66) $ (7,757,62)

k. Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounteih faccordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 746counting for Income Taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe future tax consequences attributable tedihces between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabiliiad their respective tax bases. Deferred taxsaaset liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeernytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities change in tax rates is recognized in income irpréod that includes the enactment date.
Valuation allowances are established, when necgdsareduce deferred tax assets to the amountxeqgbto be realized.
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. Acquisition, Exploration and Development Cosiineral property acquisition costs are capitalizédditionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until optgons commence. All such capitalized
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia mange from 10 years, based on the minimum original license t&racquisition, but do n
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costpotycommercial development of an ore body, theiegiple capitalized costs would then be
amortized using the units-of-production methodplBration costs, costs incurred to maintain curgentiuction or to maintain assets on a
standby basis are charged to operations. Costisasfdoned projects are charged to operations Umordanment. The Company evaluates,
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if these
costs are in excess of their net realizable vahgkifea permanent impairment needs to be recordé periodic evaluation of carrying value
of capitalized costs and any related property,tman equipment costs are based upon expectedloashand/or estimated salvage value in
accordance with ASC Topic 360, "Accounting for thgpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."

m. Foreign Currency Translation - The assets aidliies of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated U.S. Dollars at yeagnd exchange rate
Income and expense items are translated at averapp@ange rates during the year. Cumulative trapslaidjustments are shown as a separate
component of stockholders' equity.

n. Principles of ConsolidationQur consolidated financial statements have beepgped in accordance with accounting principlesecadly
accepted in the United States of America, and delthe accounts of the Company and more-than-6@%ed subsidiaries that
controls. Inter-company balances and transactians been eliminated in consolidation.

0. Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization - Calited costs are depreciated or depleted usingtthgght-line method over the shorter of
estimated productive lives of such facilities o tiseful life of the individual assets. Productives range from 1 to 20 years, but do not
exceed the useful life of the individual asset.dbetination of expected useful lives for amortizatéalculations are made on a property-by-
property or asset-by-asset basis at least annually.

p. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Managemeniaas and evaluates the net carrying value of allifees, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occuresfoother events or changes in circumstancesntiaate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net réddizalue of each property based on the estimatdicounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegnt and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating segjare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.

g. Licenses - Licenses are capitalized at cosaa@@mortized on a straight-line basis on a rarga . to 10 years, but do not exceed the
useful life of the individual license. At Deceml8dr, 2009 and 2008, amortization expense totaléd 881 and $491,298, respectively.
Amortization expense over the next five years i

Year Amount
2010 $ 464,63
2011 $ 464,63
2012 $ 464,63
2013 $ 464,63
2014 $ 464,63:
thereafter $ 672,97(

r. Reclamation and Remediation Costs (Asset Re@irtr@bligations) - Costs of future expendituresdiovironmental remediation are not
discounted to their present value unless subjegtcdmntractually obligated fixed payment sched8lech costs are based on management's
current estimate of amounts to be incurred whemeaheediation work is performed, within current laaved regulations. The Company has
accrued approximately $60,000 as December 31, 200 it needs to pay towards it environmental segtich remain unpaid as of the date
of this filing. The Company did not mine ore in00so it did not have any additional environmedtss for 2009.

It is possible that, due to uncertainties assodiati¢gh defining the nature and extent of environtaknontamination and the application of

laws and regulations by regulatory authorities eimanges in reclamation or remediation technoldgy ultimate cost of reclamation and
remediation could change in the future.
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s. Revenue Recognition - Sales are recognizedeu@thues are recorded when title transfers andghtsrand obligations of ownership pass
to the customer. The majority of the company's hegtacentrates are sold under pricing arrangemenése final prices are determined by
guoted market prices in a period subsequent tddke of sale. In these circumstances, revenuageneded at the times of sale based on
forward prices for the expected date of the firddlsment. In 2009 and 2008, the Company recodr$i86,641 and $0, respectively, of s.
from its Tukhmanuk property in Armenia. The Compatso possesses Net Smelter Return (“NSR”) royfadiyn non-affiliated

companies. As the non-affiliated companies recogrevenue, as per above, the Company is entdlgégd NSR royalty percentage and
royalty income is recognized and recorded. In 2808 2008, the Company recognized $0 and $14,2&pectively, of royalty income fron
2.5% NSR royalty from Tamaya Resources Limitedshkivadz-Tei and Terterasar properties in Armenia.

t. New Accounting Standards:

In June 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidamicich eliminates the exemption for qualifying cipépurpose entities from
consolidation requirements, contains new critesiadietermining the primary beneficiary of a varabiterest entity, and increases the
frequency of required reassessments to determietheha company is the primary beneficiary of aal@e interest entity. The guidance is
applicable for annual periods beginning after Nokeml5, 2009 and interim periods therein and tHened he Company does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material efbedts financial position or results of operations

EITF Issue No. 07-5 (ASC 815), “Determining Whetharinstrument (or embedded Feature) is Indexeaah tBntity’s Own Stock” (EITF 07-

5) was issued in June 2008 to clarify how to deieerwhether certain instruments or features wedlexrd to an entity’s own stock under
EITF Issue No. 01-6 (ASC 815), “The Meaning of “éx&d to a Company’s Own Stock” (EITF 01-6) (ASC B1BITF 07-5(ASC 815),
applies to any freestanding financial instrumentf@bedded feature) that has all of the charatie=isf a derivative as defined in FAS 133,
for purposes of determining whether that instrunfenembedded feature) qualifies for the first pithe paragraph 11(a) scope exception. It
is also applicable to any freestanding financiatimment (e.g., gross physically settled warrathia) is potentially settled in an entity’s own
stock, regardless of whether it has all of the abtristics of a derivative as defined in FAS 183C 815), for purposes of determining
whether to apply EITF 00-19 (ASC 815). EITF 07-5(A815) does not apply to shavased payment awards within the scope of FAS 12
Share-Based Payment (FAS 123(R) (ASC 718)). Howeareequity-linked financial instrument issuednedstors to establish a marketsec
measure of the fair value of employee stock optismet within the scope of FAS 123(R) and therefisrsubject to EITF 07-5(ASC 815).

In January 2009, the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-2A8SKC(325), to amend the impairment guidance in B5Hae No. 99-20 (ASC 325) in
order to achieve more consistent determinationt@tiver an other-than-temporary impairment (“OTH&s occurred. This FSP amended
EITF 99-20 (ASC 325) to more closely align the OTuiidance therein to the guidance in Statementllis.(ASC 320, 10-35-31).
Retrospective application to a prior interim or aalhperiod is prohibited. The guidance in this F&3 considered in the assessment of OTTI
for various securities at December 31, 2008.

On June 5, 2003, the United States Securities antddhge Commission (“SEC”) adopted final rules urBiection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (“Section 404"), as amended by SEC B&teNo. 33-9072 on October 13, 2009. Commenciryitgiannual report for the year
ending December 31, 2010, the Company will be reguio include a report of management on its irlecontrol over financial reporting.
The internal control report must include a stateinaén

« Management’s responsibility for establishing andnt@ning adequate internal control over its finahceporting;
« Management’'s assessment of the effectiveness ioté@snal control over financial reporting as ofyeend; and
» The framework used by management to evaluate fheteeness of the Company’s internal control dirggincial reporting.

Furthermore, it is required to file the auditortteatation report separately on the Company’s materontrol over financial reporting on
whether it believes that the Company has maintaiimeall material respects, effective internal cohbver financial reporting.
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In August 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Accounsitgndards Update No. 2009-04 “Accounting for Retdde Equity Instruments -
Amendment to Section 480-10-S99” which represemtspalate to section 480-10-S99, distinguishinglitzs from equity, per EITF Topic
D-98, Classification and Measurement of Redeem@btrurities. The Company does not expect the adopfithis update to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial position, tesaf operations or cash flows. In August 200@, BASB issued the FASB Accounting
Standards Update No. 2009-05 “Fair Value Measureimeth Disclosures Topic 820 — Measuring Liabilitéd-air Value”, which provides
amendments to subtopic 820-10, Fair Value Measumisvand Disclosures — Overall, for the fair valusasurement of liabilities. This update
provides clarification that in circumstances in @ehha quoted price in an active market for the idanhtiability is not available, a reporting
entity is required to measure fair value using onmore of the following techniques: 1. A valuati@chnique that uses: a. The quoted pric
the identical liability when traded as an ass&pboted prices for similar liabilities or similaabilities when traded as assets. 2. Another
valuation technique that is consistent with thagiples of topic 820; two examples would be an meapproach, such as a present value
technique, or a market approach, such as a techtha is based on the amount at the measuremtenthda the reporting entity would pay to
transfer the identical liability or would receiv@ énter into the identical liability. The amendneeint this update also clarify that when
estimating the fair value of a liability, a repodientity is not required to include a separat@fmp adjustment to other inputs relating to the
existence of a restriction that prevents the tiemnsf the liability. The amendments in this updat® clarify that both a quoted price in an
active market for the identical liability when textlas an asset in an active market when no adjotgrteethe quoted price of the asset are
required are Level 1 fair value measurements. Tdragany does not expect the adoption of this updaiave a material impact on its
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

In September 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Acdogr8tandards Update No. 2009-08 “Earnings PereSh#mendments to Section
260-10-S99”,which represents technical correcttortepic 260-10-S99, Earnings per share, based di Eopic D-53, Computation of
Earnings Per Share for a Period that includes &Rpton or an Induced Conversion of a Portion 6lass of Preferred Stock and EITF
Topic D-42, The Effect of the Calculation of Eamgsnper Share for the Redemption or Induced Cormeisi Preferred Stock. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this update to bavaterial impact on its consolidated financiadipion, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Acdogr8tandards Update No. 2009-09 “Accounting faelstments-Equity Method and
Joint Ventures and Accounting for Equity-Based Peyts to Non-Employees”. This update representsraction to Section 323-10-S99-4,
Accounting by an Investor for Stock-Based Compeaorsdbranted to Employees of an Equity Method IngesAdditionally, it adds observer
comment Accounting Recognition for Certain Tranigas Involving Equity Instruments Granted to Otliéan Employees to the
Codification. The Company does not expect the adopd have a material impact on its consolidatedrfcial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

In September 2009, the FASB issued the FASB Acdogr8tandards Update No. 2009-12 “Fair Value Mearmgnts and Disclosures Topic
820 — Investment in Certain Entities That CalcuMét Assets Value Per Share (or Its Equivalent}iicl provides amendments to Subtopic
820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuregdllyéor the fair value measurement of investmeéntsertain entities that calculate net
asset value per share (or its equivalent). The dments in this update permit, as a practical exgrgda reporting entity to measure the fair
value of an investment that is within the scopéghefamendments in this update on the basis ofé¢hagset value per share of the investment
(or its equivalent) if the net asset value of teestment (or its equivalent) is calculated in aanga consistent with the measurement
principles of Topic 946 as of the reporting ens8tyneasurement date, including measurement of alllostantially all of the underlying
investments of the investee in accordance with@8@D. The amendments in this update also reqisobodures by major category of
investment about the attributes of investmentsiwithe scope of the amendments in this update, asithe nature of any restrictions on the
investor’s ability to redeem its investments atrieasurement date, any unfunded commitments (&Bimple, a contractual commitment by
the investor to invest a specified amount of adddl capital at a future date to fund investmemds will be made by the investee), and the
investment strategies of the investees. The maijagory of investment is required to be determimrethe basis of the nature and risks of the
investment in a manner consistent with the guiddocenajor security types in U.S. GAAP on investisein debt and equity securities in
paragraph 320-10-50-1B. The disclosures are redjfiireall investments within the scope of the anreadts in this update regardless of
whether the fair value of the investment is meaduseng the practical expedient. The Company doégxpect the adoption to have a
material impact on its consolidated financial gosit results of operations or cash flows.
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In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance for ammemds to FASB Emerging Issues Task Force on ElS&el®No. 09-1 “Accounting for
Own-Share Lending Arrangements in Contemplatioa Gbnvertible Debt Issuance or Other Financing’b(Spic 470-20) “Subtopic”. This
accounting standards update establishes the adeguamd reporting guidance for arrangements undiciwown-share lending arrangements
issued in contemplation of convertible debt issgafitis Statement is effective for fiscal years] arterim periods within those fiscal years,
beginning on or after December 15, 2009. Earli@p&dn is not permitted. The Company does not eixjiecadoption to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial position, tesof operations or cash flows.

A variety of proposed or otherwise potential acdamgnstandards are currently under study by stahsdetting organizations and various
regulatory agencies. Due to the tentative andmieéry nature of those proposed standards, manaddras not determined whether
implementation of such proposed standards wouldh&terial to our consolidated financial statements.

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table illustrates the capitalized tless accumulated depreciation arriving at thecaatying value on our books at December
31, 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008
Property, plant and equipment $ 3,736,60. $ 4,393,62.
Less accumulated depreciation (1,982,76) (1,591,20)
$ 1,753,841 $ 2,802,41!

The Company had depreciation expense for the yadceDecember 31, 2009 and 2008 of $699,022 andl, 573, respectively.
4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the accountsdhypapgad accrued expenses consisted of the follawing

2009 2008
Drilling work payable $ 317,54 $ 292,41
Accounts payable 1,713,45! 1,369,93
Accrued expenses 54,16¢ 60,03¢
$ 2,085,17: $ 1,722,39.

5. DEPOSIT PAYABLE

On August 28, 2008, the Company received an advai 50,000 from one of the Madre Gold, LLC mensban the anticipated signing of
the July 31, 2008 Agreement, as further describhatlé Agreements section below. As of SeptembgRQ08, the agreement was terminated
due to non performance of one of the closing okiiga by one of the parties. As partial compeosetdr the non-performing party’s breach
of contract, the Company has retained this depasiif the date of this filing. The Company hadtemi off the deposit to gain on
extinguishment of debt as of December 31, 2009.

6. SECURED LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has secured a secured line of crexdit Arexim bank in Armenia. The Company pledgedatemining equipment with an
approximate value of $817,550 at its Tukhmanuk eriypagainst the line of credit. The maximum credis for $656,631. As of December
31, 2009, the Company had borrowings outstandirgf8R,865 of which $479,294 is payable in 2010$3&71 is payable in 2011. The
credit accrues interest at approximately 15% par.y&he balance owed at December 31, 2009 was $B48vhich includes accrued interest
of $61,046.
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7. SEGMENT REPORTING BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company has sold its products to various custsmrimarily in former Soviet Union, but as of Mar24, 2009 the Company entered into
an agreement to sell the output of gold and sitegrcentrates from the Tukhmanuk mine to a Swissasmpany. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations on its customers aneigaly does not require collateral. The Compangrafes in a single industry segment,
production of gold and other precious metals inicigdoyalties from other non-affiliated companigsduction of gold and other precious
metals.

For the fiscal years end December 31, 2009 and,2008f the Company’s revenue was $136,641 and2li14 respectively, which was all
derived from Armenia.

The following summarizes identifiable assets bygyaphic area:

Assets table:
Year Ending December 31,

2009 2008
Armenia $ 4,873,89. $ 5,896,98I
Chile 1,351,83; 1,991,08:
Canada - 40,88:
United States 30,66¢ 287,44¢
$ 6,256,39: $ 8,216,39'

The following summarizes operating losses befoowipion for income tax:

Net Loss table
Year Ending December 31,

2009 2008
Armenia $ 2,299,78 $ 5,118,74.
Chile 291,07 865,48
Canada 40,88: 405,08
United States 1,688,82! 2,563,80:
$ 4,320,56. $ 8,953,11.

8. CONCENTRATION RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisiqypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institans in the United States and Armenia. Bank digpdsthe United States did not exceed
federally insured limits as of December 31, 2008 Becember 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009 awtDber 31, 2008, the Company
had approximately $250 and $10,000, respectivelirimenian bank deposits and $21,000 and $27,@8pectively, in Chilean bank
deposits, which may not be insured. The Companybaexperienced any losses in such accounts thrbegember 31, 2009 and as of the
date of this filing.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency

fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, polificiibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.
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9. OFFICERS' COMPENSATION AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The Company values shares issued to officers ubaénir value of common shares on grant date.

On January 1, 2007, the Company entered into gologyment agreement with Hrayr Agnerian, designaliing as the Company's Senior V
President for Exploration and Development. Theleympent agreement provides that Mr. Agnerian vatieive an annual base salary of
$62,500, and is entitled to receive any bonus teymiéned in accordance with any plan approved byRbard of Directors. Mr. Agnerian
resigned from the Board of Directors effective Daber 31, 2006. The employment agreement is foniialiterm of two years, terminating
on December 31, 2008. Pursuant to employment agneeivr. Agnerian was also granted (i) Eighty Thié®usand Three Hundred Thirty
Four (83,334) shares of the common stock of Gl@udt Corporation pursuant to the terms of the Retettt Stock Award to vest in four
equal installments of 20,834 shares every six ngmbmmencing on June 1, 2007 and (ii) optionstpime Eighty Three Thousand Three
Hundred Thirty Four (83,334) shares of common swfodRompany at the rate of 41,667 per year fronudanl, 2007 through January 1,
2008 (totaling 83,334) at $0.88 per share (thénmuéttic mean of the high and low prices of the Camyfsastock on December 29, 2006), to
vest in two equal installments of 41,667 share® eacJanuary 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008. On 2007, the Company entered into an
representing a 140% increase over his previousyseffective June 1, 2007 and is entitled to reeeimy bonus as determined in accordance
with any plan approved by the Board of Directorlse Bmended Employment Agreement terminates on Dearedd, 2008. Pursuant to the
revised agreement, Mr. Agnerian was also granteatditional (i) 116,666 shares of restricted stimckest in three equal installments of
38,889 shares each on December 31, 2007, Jun®@®a2d December 31, 2008 and (ii) 116,666 stotkgpto purchase Common Stock at
$0.83 per share (the arithmetic mean of the highlew prices of the Company's stock on June 1572Q6 vest in equal installments of
58,333 shares each on December 31, 2007, and Dec&hh2008. The restricted stock and options presly awarded to Mr. Agnerian will
continue to vest pursuant to his original Employtisgreement. The restricted stock and options abgest to a substantial risk of forfeiture
upon termination of his employment with the Compédaying the term of the Agreement and the opti@angwas made pursuant to the Gl
Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. Onddaler 31, 2008, Mr. Agnerian’s contract was terteda

On January 11, 2007, the Company declared a stmukshto Dr. Urquhart of 10,000 shares of commookséd $0.86 per share for a total
value of $8,600. The Company also declared stockibes to 64 employees in Armenia for a total of20,shares of common stock at $0.86
per share for a total value of $17,845. The $Z6w4s included in officers' compensation and iraats payable and accrued expenses as 0
December 31, 2006.

On January 11, 2007, the Company also declare& bmuuses to 8 key employees in Armenia for a witd2,500 shares of common stocl
$0.86 per share for a total value of $27,950 whigst over 2 years. The $27,950 was included imuneel compensation and in accounts
payable and accrued expenses as of December 3., 200

On January 11, 2007, the Company issued as dissfetes to each of the five directors (Nicholasyhikan, Drury J. Gallagher, Harry
Gilmore, lan Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stockiops to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stottlea€ompany each at $.86 per sh
The option grants were made pursuant to the GIgb&d Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. In #ddj the Company granted 50,000
shares of restricted Common Stock to Harry Gilmamen initial director's fee at the fair marketneabf $.86 per share.

On June 15, 2007, the Company approved a new emglatyagreement for Jan Dulman with respect tomisl@yment as the Controller of

the Company. The Board of Directors unanimouslgteld Mr. Dulman as the Chief Financial Officer. Tegised new agreement provides
that Mr. Dulman will resign as Controller and assutime title of Chief Financial Officer effectivenii1, 2007 and will receive an annual base
salary of $125,000, representing a 108% increasefus previous salary and is entitled to receiwelzonus as determined in accordance
any plan approved by the Board of Directors. The agreement is for two years and two months tertimgan July 31, 2009. Pursuant to

the new agreement, Mr. Dulman was also grantetb@000 shares of restricted stock to vest in &mual installments of 37,500 shares each
on January 31, 2008, July 31, 2008, January 319 28d July 31, 2009 and (ii) 150,000 stock optimngurchase Common Stock at $0.83 per
share (the arithmetic mean of the high and lowgsriaf the Company's stock on June 15, 2007), toiivesjual installments of 75,000 shares
each on August 1, 2007, and August 1, 2008.

The restricted stock and options previously awatdedr. Dulman will continue to vest pursuant t@ original Employment Agreement. The

restricted stock and options are subject to a anhiat risk of forfeiture upon termination of himployment with the Company during the te
of the Agreement and the option grant was madeupatso the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock htise Plan.
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On June 15, 2007, the Company approved the empluyageeement of Lester Caesar with respect torhj@/ment as the Controller
effective June 1, 2007. Effective August 1, 2007, ®hesar will receive an annual base salary of0RE) representing a 29% decrease over
his previous salary and is entitled to receive lamyus as determined in accordance with any plaroapg by the Board of Directors. The r
agreement is for one year commencing on Augusda7 2nd terminating on July 31, 2008. Pursuartéatew agreement, Mr. Caesar was
also granted 20,000 shares of restricted stocks$bim equal installments of 10,000 shares eaclanoary 31, 2007, and July 31, 2008. The
restricted stock previously awarded to Mr. Caes#roantinue to vest pursuant to his original emytent agreement. The restricted stock is
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture upomtimation of his employment with the Company durihg term of the Employment
Agreement.

On December 14, 2007, the Company authorized & simeus to Dr. Urquhart of 100,000 shares of comstonk at $0.55 per share for a
total value of $55,000 based on the market shace.piThe shares were issued for services render2@7 and immediately vested. The
shares were issued on February 11, 2008. The Gongiso declared stock bonuses to 82 employeesnireAia for a total of 26,750 shares
of common stock at $0.55 per share for a totalevalu$14,713 based on the market share price. 88& $3 was included in officers'
compensation and in accounts payable and accryszhsas as of December 31, 2007.

On December 14, 2007, the Company also declarelf btuses to 8 key employees in Armenia for d tftd7,000 shares of common st
at $0.55 per share for a total value of $14,85Ctviiest over 2 years. The shares were issued andgill, 2008. As of December 31,
2007, the $14,850 was included in unearned comgiensand in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

On April 8, 2008, the Company issued as directees fto each of the five directors (Nicholas Aymilirury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore, |
Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options to pasd 100,000 Common Stock of the Company each 45 $@r share, vesting on October
8, 2008. The option grants were made pursuantt&thbal Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incentive Plan

On August 1, 2008, pursuant to his employment ages¢, Mr. Caesar’s agreement was automaticallynebetet for an additional year though
July 31, 2009. On December 10, 2008, Mr. Caesargranted 20,000 shares of restricted stock toinesjual installments of 10,000 shares
each on January 31, 2009, and July 31, 2009. Bieated stock is subject to a substantial riskoofeiture upon termination of his
employment with the Company during the term of Eneployment Agreement.

Between September 3, 2008, and September 9, 2088I8is Aynilian, one of the Company’s independdirgctors, purchased a total of
192,002 shares on the open market at $0.10 pee.sfige purchase was made in accordance with thgp@uoy’s insider trading policies.

On October 3, 2008, the Company authorized thesseiof 300,000 shares of restricted common stEk.tUrquhart at $0.17 per share for
a total value of $51,000 based on the market gtvéze. The shares were issued both as a bonsgifeices rendered in 2008 (200,000
shares) and in exchange for cancellation of $46¢84i&bt (100,000 shares). The shares vested imatedd

On October 8, 2008, Nicholas Aynilian, an independzirector of the Company, had an open order talpase 250,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock inadvertently executed dledlf Upon becoming aware of this transaction smdvoid any appearance of a
conflict, per our inside trading policies, Mr. Ajiah immediately sold the 250,000 shares on Oct@be2008 and disgorged profits to the
Company.

On December 31, 2008, pursuant to his employmeeeagent, Mr. Gallagher's agreement was automagieallended for an additional year
through December 31, 2009 under the same terms ahiaual salary of $125,000, 33,333 shares oficessircommon stock and stock options
to purchase 166,667 of common stock of the Comp&tyMay 18, 2009, pursuant to Mr. Gallagher’s emgpient agreement extension
under his contract and as confirmed by the indepeincbmpensation committee and board of direchrsGallagher was granted 33,333
shares of restricted common stock with 16,667 shaesting on June 30, 2009, and 16,666 sharesgeastiDecember 31, 2009. Mr.
Gallagher was also granted stock options to puecthé8,667 shares of common stock of the Compa#i@.20 per share vesting on
November 18, 2009. The restricted stock is sultgeatsubstantial risk of forfeiture upon termipatiof his employment with the Compa
during the term of the Employment Agreement.
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On May 18, 2009, the Company issued as directestfe each of the five directors (Nicholas Ayniliamury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore,
lan Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options tmghase 100,000 shares of common stock of the Coyrgeech at $0.20 per share, vesting
on November 18, 2009. The option grants were madgupnt to the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Staaehtive Plan and pursuant to the
Board’s April 24, 2009 decision from which date tiions were valued.

On May 18, 2009, pursuant to Courtney Fellowes’ leynpent agreement as the Company’s Vice PresideBtisiness Development and
Investor Relations for the period of January 1,2@0December 31, 2009, Mrs. Fellowes was gran®8d0D0 shares of restricted common
stock to vest in equal installments of 50,000 shaach on June 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008. Adilowes was also granted stock
options to purchase 100,000 shares of common sifoitle Company at $0.20 per share vesting on JAn2aD9. The restricted stock is
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture upomtimation of his employment with the Company durihg term of the Employment
Agreement.

On May 18, 2009, the Company issued Jan Dulmar0R0Gshares of restricted common stock as a retepigment under the terms of his
employment agreement vesting on December 31, 2088.restricted stock is subject to a substansélaf forfeiture upon termination of his
employment with the Company.

On June 19, 2009, the Company’s independent corapencommittee and the board of directors autleorigmployment amendments and
extensions to Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossian, Dulnaai Caesar under the same terms of their prieeagents.

On August 12, 2009, the Company finalized employnagmeement amendments and extensions under theeteamms of their current
contracts which were approved on June 19, 2009dYbmpany’s independent compensation committéieedioard of director’s to retain
key employees, for Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossiamipian and Caesar. Annual compensation terms war@ecreased. Mr. Krikorian's
employment agreement was extended for an additgabr term from July 1, 2009 through June 30220ith an annual salary of $225,000
and Mr. Krikorian was granted 1,050,000 share®sfricted common stock which will vest in equal sammual installments over the term of
his employment agreement. Mr. Boghossian's emptayragreement was extended for an additional 3teear from July 1, 2009 through
June 30, 2012 with an annual salary of $72,000MindBoghossian was granted 337,500 shares of eesfrcommon stock which will vest in
equal semi-annual installments over the term othiployment agreement. Mr. Dulman’s employmeneeagrent was extended for an
additional 3 year term from August 1, 2009 throdgly 31, 2012 with an annual salary of $150,000 ndDulman was granted 225,000
shares of restricted common stock which will vastgual semi-annual installments over the termiémployment agreement. Mr. Dulman
was also granted stock options to purchase 225B8fks of common stock of the Company at $0.14lpme (based on the closing price at
his renewal) vesting in equal quarterly installnsemter the term of his employment agreement. Medar's employment agreement was
extended for an additional year from August 1, 2008ugh July 31, 2010 with an annual salary of,880 and Mr. Caesar was granted
20,000 shares of restricted common stock whichweiit in equal semi-annual installments over tha @& his employment agreement. The
option grant was made pursuant to the Global Galg@ration 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. The restdctock is subject to a substantial risk
of forfeiture upon termination of employment wittetCompany during the term of the Employment Agress

Compensation expense for the years ended Decerhp20@9 and 2008 was $1,732,148 and $2,927,192aiftoeint of total deferred
compensation amortized for the years ended Decegihe2009 and 2008 was $288,919 and $717,994.

F-18




The following table illustrates the Company's comgaion commitments for the next 5 years as of Bées 31, 2009.

Year Amount

2010 $ 589,50(
2011 447,00(
2012 236,00(
2013 -
2014 =

On February 7, 2008, the Company received a short ban in the amount of $260,000, an additio280$000 loan on March 10, 2008, and
an additional $300,000 loan on April 14, 2008 (edlively, the “Loans”), from lan Hague, a directdthe Company, which Loans accrue
interest, from the day they are issued and urgildéy they are repaid by the Company, at an amateabf 10%. The Company promises to
repay, in full, the Loan and all the Interest aectthereon on the sooner of: (1) Mr. Hague’s denadteat June 6, 2008; or (2) from the
proceeds of any financing the company receives $4€00,000. The Company may prepay this loanlirafany time. But if it is not repaid
by June 10, 2008, Mr. Hague will have the rightpamother rights available to Mr. Hague under #w, lto convert the loan plus accrued
interest to Common Stock of the Company at theepradculable and on the terms of the Global Golth@a@tion 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan. In addition, Mr. Hague will have the rightaay time to convert the terms of all or a portidrthe Loan to the terms provided to any
third party investor or lender financing the conypain connection with the Loan, pursuant to thenpany’s standing policies, including it's
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and NominaimbGovernance Charter, the Board of Directoré@etithout the participation of Mr.
Hague, reviewed and approved the Loan and its texntsdetermined the borrowings to be in the Comigarest interest. On May 12, 2008,
the Company received an advance of $1,500,000 madditional advance of $800,000 on July 7, 2008€ctively, the “Advances”), from
Mr. Hague on the anticipated signing of the JulyZ108 Agreement. On September 23, 2008, aftetetin@ination of the July 31, 2008
Agreement, the Company restructured the Loanshanddvances into a new agreement (the “Loan ancaRgy which became effective
November 6, 2008. Key terms of the Loan and Rgyattlude interest accruing from September 23, 2008 the day the loan is repaid

full at an annual rate of 10% and the Company grgra royalty of 1.75% from distributions to ther@pany from the sale of gold and all
other metals produced from the Madre De Dios prypzrrrently included in the Global Gold Valdiviaift venture with members of the
Quijano family. At December 31, 2009 accrued ies¢was $516,258.

Pursuant to two short-term loan agreements datei 24 2009 for $32,000 and May 4, 2009 for $20,®0e Company borrowed a total of
$52,000 from one of its directors, Nicholas J. Awm. The terms of both agreements include an amate of 10% with repayment on the
sooner of; (1) demand after June 6, 2009; or (nfthe proceeds of any financing the Company reseiyn addition, if the loans are not
repaid by June 10, 2009, the lender will have ttjiety among other rights available, to convertltien plus accrued interest to common sh
of the Company at the price calculable and onehms of the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock imise Plan. Accrued interest as of
December 31, 2009 was $3,609.

On April 16, 2009 and April 27, 2009, the CompanWirector and Treasurer, Drury Gallagher, maderedt free loans of $3,000 and $1,(
respectively, to the Company which have not bepaiteas of the date of this filing.

On May 13, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreemenCtmpany borrowed $550,000 from two of its directars Hague ($500,000) and Nichc
J. Aynilian ($50,000). The terms of the agreemealuide an annual rate of 10% with repayment orstfomer of: (1) demand after June 1,
2009; (2) from the proceeds of any financing then@any; or (3) from the proceeds of the sale ofniéerést in any Company property. In
addition, if the loans are not repaid by June D09 the lenders will have the right, among otligints available, to convert the loan plus
accrued interest to common shares of the Compathe girice calculable and on the terms of the Gl@mdd Corporation 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan. The lenders will also have thétrigntil this and any other loans from you are @ any time to convert the terms of all or
a portion of this or other loans made pursuaniéotérms provided to any third party investor adier financing the Company. Accrued a
December 30, 2009 was $34,959.

On August 27, 2009 and September 10, 2009, the @oy'gpDirector and Treasurer, Drury Gallagher, maderést free loans of $20,000 &
$1,500, respectively, to the Company which havebeen repaid as of the date of this filing.
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On September 14, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreethen€ompany borrowed $50,000 from one of itsadoes lan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Novemb20Q9; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 1, 2009, the lenders will have the rightong other rights available, to convert the lolas pccrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe gepaid at any time to convert the terms of al portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third pamtsestor or lender financing the Company. Accrugdriest as of December 31, 2009 was
$1,479.

On October 29, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreerttenCompany borrowed $60,000 from one of its doectan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Decemb209; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 31, 2009, the lenders will have the rigitong other rights available, to convert the Iplus accrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegs@afithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe gepaid at any time to convert the terms of al portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third pamtsestor or lender financing the Company. Accrugdriest as of December 31, 2009 was
$1,036.

On November 12, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreerttenCompany borrowed $10,000 from one of its dieclan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Januar@10;2(2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 31, 2009, the lenders will have the rigimong other rights available, to convert the Ipkus accrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegs@afithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe gepaid at any time to convert the terms of al portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third pamtsestor or lender financing the Company. Accrugdrest as of December 31, 2009 was
$107.

On December 10, 2009, the Company’s Director améJurer, Drury Gallagher, made an interest free ¢6&2,000 to the Company which
has not been repaid as of the date of this filing.

On December 28, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreemhenGompany borrowed $110,000 from one of itsatiines lan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with reayron the sooner of: (1) demand after Februa®010; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
January 31, 2010, the lenders will have the righitong other rights available, to convert the lolas pccrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe eepaid at any time to convert the terms of ali portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third partsestor or lender financing the Company. Accrugdrest as of December 31, 2009 was
$90.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company owes Drurya@haér, the Company’s Director and Treasurer, apprately $13,350 for expense
reimbursement which bears no interest.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company owes AshohBsgjan, GGM’s Regional Director, approximately &0 for expense
reimbursement which bears no interest.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company owes unpageesvaf approximately $399,195 to management. Tdreg@ny is accruing interest at
an annual rate of 9% on the net of taxes wages tovethnagement.

F-20




10. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance Wwitlptovisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Inadiaxes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax cansences attributable to differences between ttanfiial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respectiix bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitesreasured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in income in the period that includesdghactment date. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferreabtmets to the amounts expected to be realized.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had net deféavedssets of $12,495,000. The Company has prodeduation allowance, which
increased during 2009 by $1,619,000, against tharfwunt of its deferred tax asset, since thdiliked of realization cannot be determined.

The following table illustrates the source andustaif the Company's major deferred tax assets Beaémber 31, 2009.

2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwa $ 12,048,00 $ 10,481,00
Stock option expense 447 ,00( 395,00(
Net deferred tax ass 12,495,000 10,876,000
Valuation allowance (12,495,00) (10,876,00)
$ - $ =

The provision for income taxes for year ended Ddmam31, 2009 and 2008 differs from the amount cdetbby applying the statutory
federal income tax rate (35%) to income before inedaxes as follows:

2009 2008
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 1,512,000 $ 3,133,001
State tax benefit (net of federal) 216,00( 448,00(
Permanent differences (book stock comp versus
tax stock comp) (109,00() (7,000
Increase in valuation allowance (1,619,001 (3,574,000
Provision for income taxes $ - $ -

The Company had net operating loss carry forwasd$aik purposes of approximately $28,500,000 atbdser 31, 2009 expiring at various
dates from 2014 to 2029. A significant portion leéde carry forwards are subject to limitations wnual utilization due to "equity structure
shifts" or "owner shifts" involving "5 percent stdwlders" (as defined in the Internal Revenue Gufdi986, as amended), which resulted in
more than a 50 percent change in ownership.

11. COMMON STOCK

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armkmiged liability company Mego-

Gold, LLC which is the licensee for the Tukhmanuikimg property and surrounding exploration sitesvali as the owner of the related
processing plant and other assets. On August(f,ZBlobal Gold Mining exercised its option to aicquhe remaining forty-nine percent
(49%) of Mego-Gold, LLC, in exchange for one mitlidollars ($1,000,000) and five hundred thousa®f&0) restricted shares of the
Company's common stock with a contingency allovifregsellers to sell back the 500,000 shares orfaréd September 15, 2007 for a
payment of $1 million if the Company's stock is tratdled at or above two dollars and fifty cents§$2 at any time between July 1, 2007 and
August 31, 2007. On September 12, 2006, Global Ghitdng loaned two hundred thousand dollars ($200)do Karapet Khachatryan
("Maker"), one of the sellers of Mego-Gold LLC, iizen of the Republic of Armenia, as evidencedalgonvertible promissory note payable
(“Note”) to Global Gold Mining, with interest in sgars on the unpaid principal balance at an amatlequal to ten percent (10%). At any
time following September 18, 2006, the Companytsadole option, had the right to convert all of kdds debt from the date of the Note to



date of conversion into shares of common stock@ifGompany at the conversion price of $1.50 peresivih all of such shares as security
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for all obligations. Maker pledged two hundredyfifive thousand (255,000) shares of the Comparmyisneon stock as security for his
obligations thereunder. On September 16, 2007cdh&ngency period expired without exercise, extamsr amendment. The Company has
accounted for this by booking the 500,000 sharetheafair market value of $1,000,000, into Addi@ Paid-In Capital. The Company also
booked the $200,000 secured loan into Note Recleivatd accrued interest, from inception of Notpesthe terms of the Note above, into
Additional Paid-In Capital. On February 12, 2088 Company exercised its option and converted tite Bind accrued interest into one
hundred fifty two thousand seven hundred sevemiyteshares (152,778), which were then cancellesla Aesult, the Company recorded bad
debt expense of $151,250 for the difference invéddae of the stock and the amount owed to the Compa

On January 11, 2007, the Company granted 50,00@sbéarestricted Common Stock to Harry Gilmoreasnitial director's fee at the fair
market value of $.86 per share.

In December 2008, the Company sold 4,750,000 ah$®.10 per share in a private placement. The imituded 4,750,000 common shares
and 4,750,000 warrants exercisable at $0.15 pee stmal expire on or before December 9, 2013.

12. WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

The Company adopted the 1995 Stock Option Planrumdieh a maximum of 500,000 shares of Common Stoal( be issued (subject to
adjustment for stock splits, dividends and the)like July 2002, the Company granted options tp 10,000 shares of common stock, at an
exercise price of $0.11 per share, to each ofttee €hairman, Drury Gallagher, and President ofbepany, Robert Garrison. Of these
options issued, 75,000 vest on the first annivgreathe date of issuance, and the remaining 75/@800n the second anniversary of the date
of issuance. These options expire five years filoendate of issuance. As of December 31, 2006¢ threre 200,000 stock awards available
under the Plan for future issuance. On June 34 ,2be former President and CFO, Mr. Robert Ganrigsigned his office and thereby
forfeited his options. On June 20, 2007, GlobaldG@orporation sold $16,500 in common shares, @nsto exemptions from registration
requirements of the Securities Act to Drury Gallaghhe Company's Chairman Emeritus, TreasureSagdetary. The transaction involved
the exercise of options originally issued on Jube2®02. The transaction involved the issuancEs0{000 shares of common stock at $0.11
per share in accordance with the options. As afeD®er 31, 2007 there were no options remainingtanding under the 1995 Stock Option
Plan.

On June 15, 2006, the Company's stockholders apgritnve Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incenken (the "2006 Stock Incentive
Plan™) under which a maximum of 3,000,000 shargSafimon Stock may be issued (subject to adjustfoestock splits, dividends and the
like). The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan replaces tbem@any's Option Plan of 1995 which terminated imeJR005. The Company's 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan has a teryear term and will expire on June 15, 2016. On Ji5:e006, the Company granted options to buy Z&0ghares ¢
common stock, at an exercise price of $1.70 parshathe then Chairman and CEO, Drury GallagBerJune 15, 2006, the Company also
granted options to buy 62,500 shares of commorkstd@n exercise price of $1.70 per share, tcCibratroller, Jan Dulman. On September
18, 2006, the Company granted options to buy 2@0sb@res of common stock, at an exercise pricd @5Hper share, to the then Chief
Operating Officer, Michael T. Mason. On Januar2d07, the Company granted options to buy 83,334eshof common stock, at an exer
price of $0.88 per share, to the Senior Vice Perdifor Exploration and Development, Hrayr Agneri@n January 11, 2007, the Company
issued as directors fees to each of the five dirediNicholas J. Aynilian, Drury J. Gallagher, Ha@ilmore, lan Hague, and Van Z.
Krikorian) stock options to purchase 100,000 shaféSommon Stock of the Company each at $.86 pareshOn June 15, 2007, the
Company granted options to buy 116,666 sharesrofraan stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per shartbe Senior Vice President for
Exploration and Development, Hrayr Agnerian. Onel5, 2007, the Company granted options to buy0DBGshares of common stock, at
an exercise price of $0.83 per share, to the Ghiefncial Officer, Jan Dulman. On June 20, 200iGhdel T. Mason, the Company’s
President, resigned from his position and forfedptions to buy 100,000 shares of common stocknaxercise price of $1.25 and his
additional vested options to buy 100,000 share®ofmon stock have expired unexercised as of Dece®ih@008. On October 1, 2007, the
Company granted options to buy 15,000 shares ofrmmmstock, at an exercise price of $1.00 per sharm@ consultant, Paul Airasian, which
expired on December 31, 2009. On April 8, 2008,@mmpany granted options to each of the five thredo buy 100,000 (500,000 total)
shares of common stock, at an exercise price d5§er share. On March 31, 2009, three months tkéetermination of his employment,
Hrayr Agnerian’s vested options to buy 200,000 ehaf common stock have expired unexercised acuptdithe terms of his employment
agreement. On May 18, 2009, the Company granteédngpoto each of the five directors to buy 100,(®00,000 total) shares of common
stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per sharevi@yn 18, 2009, pursuant to Mr. Gallagher’'s employhagreement extension under his
contract and as confirmed by the independent cosgtiem committee and board of directors, Mr. Gditagvas granted stock options to
purchase 166,667 shares of common stock of the @oynat $0.20 per share vesting on November 18,.2@38May 18, 2009, the Company
granted to Courtney Fellowes, the Company’s Viaskent of Business Development and Investor Relgtistock options to purchase
100,000 shares of common stock of the Company.20%@er share vesting on June 18, 2009. On Aufs2009, the Company granted to
Jan Dulman, the Company’s Chief Financial Officetgck options to purchase 225,000 shares of constomk of the Company at $0.14 per
share (based on the closing price at his renevealing in equal quarterly installments over thentef his employment agreement.
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On December 31, 2008, Warrants, that were prewadended through December 31, 2008, expired.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtiesing a Black-Scholes valuation model and tHeviing assumption terms: 3-years
interest rate: 5.0% to 5.7%; volatility: 100 - 160¥he expense is recorded in the Consolidated iG&tts of Operations.

The fair value of options granted at December 8092and 2008 was $154,167 and $100,000, respactivel

The following tables illustrates the Company's kte@rrant and option issuances and balances odistaas of, and during the years er
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, resplctive

WARRANTS OPTIONS STOCK AWARDS
Shares Weighted Shares Weighted Restricted Weighted
Underlying Average Underlying Average Stock Average
Warrants Exercise Price Warrants Exercise Price Awards Market Price
Outstanding at December 31
2007 3,466,661 $ 2.0C 1,277,500 $ 0.9 5,384,66! $ 0.6¢
Granted 4,750,00! 0.1t 500,00( 0.4t 220,00( 0.1¢€
Canceled (3,466,661 2.0C (100,001 1.2¢ - -
Exercised - - - - - -
Sold in units 5 = - - - -
Outstanding at December 31
2008 4,750,000 $ 0.1¢ 1,677,500 $ 0.9C 5,604,66! $ 0.67
Granted - - 991,66’ 0.1¢ 1,965,83. 0.1z
Canceled - - (215,000 0.8¢€ > >
Exercised - - - - - -
Sold in units 5 = - - - -
Outstanding at December 31
2009 4,750,000 $ 0.1F 2,454,16° $ 0.61 7,570,50. $ 0.5¢%
Vested shares and fair value 4,750,000 $ 0.1 224791 $ 0.6€ 6,169,25 $ 0.62

In the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 affl,2Bere were no options exercised. The follovsnadditional information with
respect to the Company's options and warrants Becémber 31, 2009.

WARRANTS
WARRANTS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE
Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise
Price Warrants Life Price Warrants Price
$ 0.1 4,750,00 3.94 years $ 0.1 4,750,0C $ 0.1
OPTIONS
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE
Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise

Price Options Life Price Options Price




$ 0.6 2,454,16 7.29 years $ 0.6 2,247,91 $ 0.6

The average intrinsic value of warrants and optexercisable at December 31, 2009 is $188. Theagedntrinsic value of warrants and
options outstanding at December 31, 2009 is $2,250.
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13. AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enter&mlari'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Maesgklexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungexdent interest ownership of mineral licensetdgit or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5@&@s). Global Gold Uranium will be solely respbifsifor exploration and management
during the option periods and can exercise theopb acquire one hundred percent of the licenggsiat either property by granting the
sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which can be boughtfau$2,000,000 cash or at the seller's option immon stock of the Company valued at
the six month weighted average of the stock atithe of exercise. All dollar references are to Ghaa dollars. Global Gold Uranium will
earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) option in therises by paying cash and common stock (20,000sshmtial deposit). In addition,
Global Gold Uranium has completed staking 300 ctajapproximately 18,531 acres) in the immediat@iticof the Grand Lake and Shall
Lake properties. With respect to the Shallow Lakeasaction, the sellers breached a representatidnvarranty to keep the license rights in
force for a period after acquisition, several & licenses lapsed, and Global Gold Uranium, iowa name, successfully staked the same
licenses in June 2007. The Company has not istieeiditial 20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Gany as of December 31, 2009, and
has phased out of these properties. The licermasdxpired as of September 30, 2009.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enterecbian agreement to acquire an option for the CoehPand license area ("the Agreeme
with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Commander") andstayer Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). The CochranedPmroperty consists of 2,6l
claims within 61,000 hectares (approximately 158,@6res). The Agreement is subject to board agp@rvd the conclusion of an

option agreement which the relevant boards subs#iguepproved. Major terms include the followingoBal Gold Uranium may earn a 51%
equity interest over a period of four years in Gacdle Pond Property by completing; Cash paymenritsSo$700,000 over four year period,;
Share issuance of 350,000 shares of Global Golgdzation (50 % each to Commander and Bayswater)afeur year period; Property
expenditures over four year period of C$3.5 million

Either party may, at any time up to the commencémmtoommercial production, elect to convert itspective interest to a 2% gross uranium
sales royalty in the case of a uranium deposit2¥a\NSR in the case of a non-uranium deposit.threeicase, 50% of the royalty obligation
may be purchased at any time prior to commerciadypcetion for a $1,000,000 cash payment.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company has paid $206680ssued 150,000 shares of the Company's comimok §5,000 shares each to
Commander and Bayswater.

On October 17, 2008, the Company through Globatl®&yknium entered into an agreement (the "RoyafiyeAment") with Commander and
Bayswater pertaining to the Cochrane Pond Progtey“Property”) located in southern Newfoundlahdttis owned 50% by Commander
and 50% by Bayswater through a joint venture (tBBJV"). The Company originally entered into an agnent acquiring an option (the
“Option Agreement”) on the Property with Commanded Bayswater on April 12, 2007. The Royalty Agneat grants Global Gold a
royalty in the Property and terminates Global Gelofe-existing rights and obligations associatet Wroperty.

The key terms of the Royalty Agreement are thailGRdV shall provide a royalty to Global Gold foanium produced from the Property in
the form of a 1% gross production royalty from siade of uranium concentrates (yellowcake) capp&ldd $1 million after which the
royalty shall be reduced to a 0.5% royalty.

The royalty shall remain attached to the Propenty ia the name of Global Gold or GGU as requiredaurthe local laws and exchange
regulations. The royalty shall survive the sald &ransfer of the property to a third party.

In consideration for the royalty, Global Gold agt¢e pay a total of $50,000 cash, $25,000 cash #a€ommander and Bayswater, on or
before November 14, 2008. The Company paid $26¢a88h each to Commander and Bayswater on Novehib2008.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreenvéh members of the Quijano family by which MiagBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios an@dproperties. The name of the joint venture campg Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV").
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Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointuemagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termsiigginterests set at 51%-49% in favor of Global@Gof the 3 directors, two (Mr. Krikorian
and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice President inta@o) are appointed by Global Gold; Global Gaddhenits to finance at least one plant
and mining operation within 6 months as well aswdually agreed exploration program to establistvproreserves, if that is successful, two
additional plants/operations will be financed; frtme profits of the joint venture, Global Gold wilhy its partner an extra share based on the
following scale of 28 million euros for (a) 5 mdl ounces of gold produced in 5 years or (b) Siomlbunces of gold proven as reserves
according to Canadian National Instrument 43-10 ¢3-101") standards in 5 years. The 6 monthgailon was amended and extended by
the October 27, 2007 Pact to a period of 3 ye@ite definitions of proven and probable reserveslid3-101 reports differ from the
definitions in SEC Industry Guide 7. Also, the S&@&s not recognize the terms “measured resounckmdicated resources” or “inferred
resources” which are used in NI 43-101 reportse Thmpany has not financed any plants as of Deae&ih009.

On July 24, 2009, Global Gold entered into an ameard with members of the Quijano family (“Quijanad)the October 29, 2007 Global
Gold Valdivia joint venture subject to final boaagproval on or before July 31, 2009 whereby GGV bécome wholly owned by Global
Gold and retain only the Pureo Claims Block (apprmtely 8,200 hectares), transferring the MadreDies claims block to the sole
ownership to members of the Quijano family. Ory 28, 2009, the amendment was approved by the Cayfgohoard of directors.

Key terms of the amendment included that on ordeefaigust 15, 2009, GGV transfer to Quijano ordesignee one hundred percent (10
interest in the current GGV claims identified as Madre De Dios Claims Block and Quijano transéeGtobal Gold one hundred percent
(100%) interest in the GGV, or its designee, ardrdmaining claims identified as the Pureo ClainuB All transfers were closed in
Santiago, Chile on August 14, 2009 which termindkedjoint venture. If GGV does not commence poidun on a commercial basis on the
property being transferred to its sole control parg to this agreement within two years (subjeetrtp time taken for permitting purposes),
the property shall revert to Quijano.

Quijano shall be entitled a 3% NSR royalty inteiasill metals produced from the properties retadiimeGGV up to a maximum of 27 milli
Euros, subject to Quijan®’initial repayment of $200,000 to Global Gold. Foree years, GGV or its designee shall have lat 10§ first
refusal on any bona fide offers for all or any prthe properties transferred to Quijano (to bereised within five (5) days). For three ye
Quijano shall also have a right of first refusalamy bona fide offers for all or any part of theperties retained by GGV or its designee (t
exercised within twenty (20) days).

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidenmtial agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the
Quijano family by which the Company has the optomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &d&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another Gold-Platinum property on Chiloe Island.

Key agreement terms for the Estrella del Sur anitb€Ilprojects required Global Gold to pay approxieha$160,000 to cover government
and license fees in exchange for an exclusive pptigil January 30, 2008 to review, explore, arrdf@int ventures on the properties. On or
before January 31, 2008, at Global Gold's soleoapgither or both of the properties shall be timmed to a new joint venture company (or
two separate companies on the same terms). Fopboterties and in consideration for forming thiafjoenture, Global Gold shall pay
1,500,000 euros (or the Chilean peso equivalentheriollowing schedule: 1. January 31, 2008, 280 68uros; 2. July 31, 2008, 250,000
euros; 3. January 30 2009, 500,000 euros; andy3112009, 500,000 euros. The Company receivegkéansion of the first payment date
March 31, 2008. On April 8, 2008, the board oediors of the Company approved an amendment exebaech 31, 2008 to the above
option agreement for mining properties on Ipunndland Chiloe Island in Southern Chile. The keyntgeof the amendment transfer the
Chiloe and Ipun licenses to the existing Globald3éaldivia company and require the Company to @el®50,000 restricted shares of
Common Stock of the Company on or before May 1820bhe 250,000 restricted shares were issued oih &2008.

If either or both properties continue to productiomd reserves are proven by the prefeasibilitysmogping studies, Global Gold's partner will
be entitled to an extra share based on the follgwaale of 37,000,000 euros (15,000,000 for Chiloe 22,000,000 for Ipun) for 3,700,000
commercially reasonable recoverable ounces of lolsl platinum (calculated on a gold price equivalEsis, using the monthly average of
the New York COMEX price for the month in which callations of proven reserves are made accordi@at@adian 43-101 standards) based
on the prefeasibility and scoping studies. Paymefitsome as the joint venture produces gold atipum as mutually agreed from no more
than 25% of Global Gold's profit from the joint vere. Part of the payments may be in Global Gaddisbn mutually agreeable terms. The
economic value of any other materials besides gofalatinum shall not be calculated as part of thismula and instead will be shared
according to joint venture terms. After the prefbiisy and scoping studies, each party shall casywn share of the costs.
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On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into ageagent to sell all of the Company'’s interest irdtgloe and Ipun island properties in
Chile, held by a Joint Venture with the Quijano fignto the Quijano family. The agreement was doded by October 15, 2008 and the
properties transferred to the purchaser as of Nbeerh, 2008.

The consideration for the sale of the Chiloe andhlsland properties include the following to GlbBald or its designee: (a) $200,000 USD,
fifty percent of which will be paid at the closiagd the other fifty percent to be paid within siggys; (b) certain second hand equipment and
parts used for mining which are currently on ornsehthe territory of the Global Gold Valdivia joiménture to be specified in the mutually
agreed transfer documents, including a Catergii# wheel loader, a Warner Swasey excavator, @atexpillar 290 kva generator; (c)
certain land rights, buildings and improvementsclitare currently on or around the territory of @lebal Gold Valdivia joint

venture, generally described as an approximatedytfectare property, known as Lote N°11, situéd@ureo, where Amparo and Pureo
mining properties are located, and approximateihtectares including two properties with their dings, situated in the area where the
mining property Guadalupe 61-120 is located, alt@be specified in the mutually agreed transterudnents; and (d) a first priority right of
payment from the profits of the Global Gold Valdiyoint venture company of $200,000 USD.

March 24, 2009, the Company signed a supply conagreement with Industrial Minerals SA (“IM”), av&s Company. The agreement is
for IM to purchase all of the gold and silver conirate produced at the Company's Tukhmanuk faclity5% of LBMA less certain
treatment and refining charges.

On April 6, 2009, the Company sold approximatelyt@ines of gold and silver concentrate pursuaitstagreement with IM. The
concentrate was delivered on April 18, 2009. Hrdtive amount due to the Company was $63,44&afhwthe Company received a pre-
payment of $31,724 on April 20, 2009. The Compaeteived $16,140 on May 27, 2009 and $14,425 ondu009. The final sales amo
after charges and adjustments was $62,289.

On July 23, 2009, the Company sold approximatelyodies of gold and silver concentrate pursuaitstagreement with IM. The
concentrate was delivered on August 4, 2009. &htative amount due to the Company was $77,255%hafhwthe Company received a par
payment of $65,664 on August 11, 2009. On OctdBe2009, the Company received $8,688 as final payiior its sale in July 2009 to
IM. The final sales amount after charges and aufjests was $74,352.

On October 27, 2009, the Company issued a presaselannouncing the first stage of approval ofvesdor its Toukhmanuk expansion.
The Republic of Armenia’s State Natural Resourcgsmiy (the "Agency") issued its certificate basedhe proposal of the Agency’s State
Geological Expert Commission made during its Ocat@3 2009 session. The total ore reserve appravas roughly 21,900,000 tonnes with
an average gold grade of 1.62 grams per tonneuwtt @f grade of 0.80 grams per tonne and an aeesdger grade of 4.88 grams per tonne.
Total approved reserves in the C1 and C2 categareesoughly 35.614 tonnes (or 1,145,000 ouncegplaf and 107 tonnes (or 3,440,000
ounces) of silver. In its approval, the Agency atitteat the “approved reserves entirely corresporttié requirements for Measured and
Indicated reserves under International Standards."

On November 18, 2009, the Company issued a presssseeannouncing that following up on the issuari¢be approving a first stage gold
reserve, the Republic of Armenia’s State Naturadrieces Agency (the “Agency”) has delivered it$ dglcision with backup calculations on
November 13, 2009 confirming an additional goldbrese in the inferred category. The Agency isstedécision based on the proposa
the Agency'’s State Geological Expert Commission enduting its October 23, 2009 session. A copy efdfficial approval and a partial
unofficial translation are available on the companyebsite www.globalgoldcorp.com

The approved gold resource in the Inferred categop tonnes (or 1,225,276 ounces), which togetlithrthe approved 1.145 million ounc
of reserves marks a sharp increase from the 8réeapproved under GKZ decision N28 of January2@64. The reserve and resource
estimates were concluded at a cutoff grade of taghg per tonne (please refer to the “CautionareNot).S. Investors” on page 3 of this
report).

On December 18, 2009, the Company entered intgaement with Caldera Resources Inc. (“Caldeoat)ining the terms for a joint ventt
on the Company’s Marjan property in Armenia (“MarjaVv”).

Key terms include that Caldera shall, subject tongeand conditions, earn a 55% interest in the aaGold-SilverPolymetallic Project afti
completing a bankable feasibility study on the pcojpr spending US$3.0M on the property.
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As additional consideration, Caldera will be makagonrefundable US$50,000 deposit by December 30, 20@9ssue 500,000 shares
the company on a postnsolidated basis. Caldera will also make a paymériS$100,000 no later than March 30, 2010. Airdife
agreement will be signed as soon as possible, apmmpletion of due diligence review, respective dogpprovals and any regulatory appr:
that may be required. The Company received the50880 deposit on December 29, 2009. See SubseBuents for an update on -
Marjan JV.

The Company rents office space in a commerciatimglat 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT witaigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental costédf, #00. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandaiffite space by assuming the leas
the adjacent office space. The assumed lease $mthien one year remaining, through September(®®8, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for &ioadtlyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeutal cost of $22,860 for that
period. The assumed lease was further extendedgh October 15, 2009 at which point the Compeaagated the additional

space. Messrs.Gallagher and Krikorian gave petguaantees of the Company's performance forithetivo years of the lease.

14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeaihd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and i tinited States. Although the Minister took theipas that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeoiffidials assured the Company to the contrary Adenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compasceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On NovembeR2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preredaito filing for international arbitration unddra 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. Ayvaziahhe Company filed for arbitration
under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("IC&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently pending for 2010. On June 25, 2008, ,Rederal District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqered to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry@azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictNgw York. In addition and based on the US Armdilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitis® Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfier Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Segtletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhay of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&ugust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdestt they have suspended the ICSID arbitration pgndonclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfiabment in principle, and anticipate that thalfsettlement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The CompaasyIearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligati@sssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As lofueey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagrteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respectthese actions will not materially affect the C@np's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, “Subsequent EventsQbmpany evaluated subsequent events after thedeatdneet date of December 31,
2009 through April 15, 2010, which is the date fihancial statements were issued.

a. On February 2, 2010, one of the Company’s Dars¢iNicholas J. Aynilian, made an interest freanlof $5,000 to the Company. The
Company repaid $2,500 to Mr. Aynilian on March @1Q, and the balance has not been repaid as datheof this filing.

b. On February 25, 2010, the Company, through hslly owned subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego®&ntered into an agreement v

Industrial Minerals, SA (“IM")to provide Mego with an advance of $450,000 fromddinst future sales of gold and silver conceat(thte
“Advance”). The advance was provided by IM on iieioy 26, 2010.
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Key terms include; that Mego provides IM with anclesive offtake agreement for its gold and silver concentimatérmenia throug
December 31, 2012; for 2009 and until February2#8,0, the price IM paid Mego for gold and silvencentrate was calculated basec
85% of the London AM/PM Gold Fixation and Londoriv8i Spot (“London Rates”until Mego delivers 2,250 metric tons of conce e
85% is reduced to 80%, after 2,250 metric tons tHmeen delivered the price will revert to 85% of don Rates; Mego provides IM witt
security interest in its current ore stockpile im#enia; and the Company provides for a corporagganiee for repayment of the Advance.

c. On March 12, 2010, GGH transferred the riglile, &nd interest for the Marjan property to Marjdiming Company, a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of the Repufli&rmenia (“Marjan RA”).

d. On March 24, 2010, the Company entered intoraangled agreement with Caldera Resources Inc. (e€alpestablishing the terms fo
joint venture on the Compa’s Marjan property in Armenia (“Marjan JV”) whichmeends the December 18, 2009 agreement.

Key terms include that Caldera shall own 55% ofghares of a newly created joint venture compaagoime the operator of the project,
be responsible for all expenses. To maintain5& Snterest, Caldera is obligated to spend up t6 8800,000 on the Property, issue 500
shares of Caldera and make a payment of US$ 1009@0 before March 30, 2010 to Global Gold Corfiora The joint venture board st
have two Caldera representatives and one Global fepiresentative. Should Caldera not perform aoatance with the terms of the Mat
JV, then Global Gold will have 100% interest of Marjan JV transferred back and Caldera will reeeam NSR on the Marjan property ec
to .5% for each tranche of US$ 1,000,000 up to simmam NSR of 3%.

Also under the joint venture agreement Calderaavith 100% in the Marjan Gold-Silver Project by nrakguarterly payments totaling US$
2,850,000, starting September 30, 2010, with Gl&xt will retain a 1.5% NSR on all production ¢ tCentral zone and a 2.5% NSR or
production on the Northern zone. Caldera can prépapayments and take 100% interest of the Ahptime.

The agreement is subject to approval by the TSXtiMerExchange and the Board of Directors of thpeeve companies.

e. On March 26, 2010, the Company, through its ytemikned subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enterietio a credit line agreement for
1 billion Armenian Drams (approximately $2,500,086th Armbusinessbank Close Joint Stock CompanyBBA) in Yerevan,

Armenia. The credit line includes a grace perindepayment until April 20, 2011, is not revolvimgay be prepaid at any time, and is to be
drawn down towards equipment purchases, constryaiod expansion of the existing plant and opematto increase production capacity to
300,000 tonnes of ore per year at Mego’s Tukhmammagerty in Armenia. The loan is for a period oféars through March 20, 2015, bears
interest at 14% for amounts borrowed, and beaesaat at 2% for amount available but not borrow€le loan is made and payable in local
AMD currency. As security, 100% of the Mego shaard the mining right certified by the Mining LicenAgreement #287 with Purpose of
Sub-Surface Exploitation and Mining License #HA-/356 issued on August 5, 2005.

f. On March 29, 2010, the Company’s Director andaBurer, Drury Gallagher, made an interest free ¢6&20,000 to the Company which
has not been repaid as of the date of this filing.
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries and Jurisdictions

State or Other Date of

Jurisdiction of Incorporation, Ownership

Incorporation Organization (Direct or
Subsidiary or Organization or Acquisition Indirect)
1.Global Oro LLC Delaware 2003 100%
2.Global Plata LLC Delaware 2003 100%
3.Global Gold Mining LLC Delaware 2003 100%
4.Global Gold Hankavan LLC Armenia 2003 100%
5.Mego-Gold LLC Armenia 2005 100%
6.Getik Mining Company LLC Armenia 2006 100%
7.Global Gold Uranium LLC Delaware 2007 100%
8.Global Gold Armenia, LLC Delaware 2003 100%
9.Minera Global Chile Limitada Chile 2004 100%
10.Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C. Chile 2007 100%



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Van Z. Krikorian, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fxkthe year ended December 31, 2009, of Globatl @arporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareswused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers arftalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 15, 2010 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, Jan E. Dulman, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fxkthe year ended December 31, 2009, of Globatl @arporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareswused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers arftalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 15, 2010 /sl Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as aceafidf Global Gold Corporation (the "Companytigreby certifies, pursuant to Section 901
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135@jt: th

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compamythe year ended December 31, 2009 fully compli¢is the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 84,015 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 15, 2010 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 15, 2010 /sl Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer
A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compady| be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.



